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Dear Shareholders,
We are pleased to attach TIP One’s inaugural Integrated Annual Report (year end June 2020) and the notice of AGM.
The period to end June 2020 (this reporting period) has proven to be both exciting and incredibly challenging. As a result
of the uncertainties COVID-19 has generated in the economy and investment markets, most firms and investors have
chosen to defer decision-making, although ironically, falling stock prices (especially for domestically focused listed
companies) have created more opportunities. As a result, while TIP One was unable to execute any transactions over this
period, given market behaviour, the pricing on many of the potential acquisitions has improved. COVID-19 has just meant
that we have had to become much more patient in negotiating and executing our acquisitions.
However, despite this tough environment, in a subsequent event to the financial year end, we are thrilled that TIP One
has entered into a strategic relationship with Baphalane Ba Mantserre Investment Holdings Proprietary Limited,
(“BBMIH”) w.r.t. an initial subscription of R5 million into TIP One shares (as detailed in the ZAPS announcement published
on 5 November 2020) which will allow TIP One to make its first investment allocations. BBMIH is the investment holding
company of the Baphalane Ba Mantserre Community, which consists of approximately 10 000 families located in the
North West and carries a significant balance sheet and its investment strategy is strongly aligned with that of TIP One.
This will be followed by a road show to raise further investment capital into TIP One to harvest the many and increasing
opportunities that present themselves in this space.
More on TIP One
TIP One is a permanent majority black owned and controlled listed company that is building a portfolio of investments
into attractively structured Black Economic Empowerment Schemes, each in turn either invested into a listed company,
or a component thereof. These investments can be acquired at compelling prices given the large BEE discounts that
typically exist between these schemes and their underlying investments.
Our Trading Rules & BEE validation process, combined with ZARX’s pre-trade compliance system and real time share
register technology, ensures that TIP One is always majority black owned and controlled according to the BEE Codes of
Good Practice while still allowing institutional, mandated and other investors to purchase shares, thereby providing
liquidity and price discovery.
Investments into BEE schemes are acquired by settling the vendor through the issue of TIP One shares, or for cash (where
appropriate), or a combination of cash and equity. BEE Schemes for consideration include conventional schemes (either
listed, typically on a restricted exchange that only allows black investors to acquire their shares, or unlisted / privately
held), Empowerment Endowments or maturing employee schemes.
Investment Proposition
To remind you, Tip One aims to provide investors with a number of unique features:
• A professionally managed portfolio of BEE schemes acquired at compelling prices whose underlying assets are in
the listed environment
• Easily accessible to the man in the street via a cost effective and user friendly platform
• Benefitting from the closing out of BEE scheme discounts to their underlying assets as these BEE schemes mature
• A different set of return drivers to conventional listed shares
• Closing discounts provide an absolute return type framework
• Providing diversification across many schemes
• Access to opportunities typically unavailable to most investors
• Appropriate for retail and institutional investors
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Investment Characteristics
While transactions may differ, TIP One’s typical targeted acquisition discount is 25% or greater, through a combination
of the BEE discounts and liquidity discounts.
When TIP One invests into a scheme:
• TIP One becomes an investor in the scheme alongside other investors
• TIP One takes over all the rights and obligations that the seller has with the scheme
• The scheme and the underlying company obtain a significant long term strategic and professional investment
partner with BEE credentials that will never falter
TIP One also aims to solve the problems faced by investors in BEE schemes:
Investors in unlisted BEE schemes typically face three key challenges:
• Long term lock ins as most BEE schemes have very low or no liquidity
• No diversification as each scheme only has one underlying asset
• Inability to borrow against this asset
For all intents and purposes, this asset is “sterilized” on the owner’s balance sheet (and from the county’s economy for
that matter) until maturity. By buying out investors in existing BEE schemes, and paying for such acquisitions with TIP One
shares, this frees up the capital for the seller.
The sellers now own TIP One shares that:
• They can now sell, borrow against or collateralise their BEE scheme investments
• Represents a diversified portfolio with attractive economics
• Allows for the freeing up capital for reinvestment back into the economy, thereby boosting economic growth
Other investors can now also participate in these opportunities through buying shares in TIP One.
More on BEE Discounts that create opportunities for investors
There are two key discounts that TIP One aims to benefit from over time:
• The BEE Discount, which is the difference between the value of a BEE scheme’s underlying holdings, and the
value of the scheme itself.
• The Liquidity Discount, which is the discount over and above the BEE Discount that the vendor may transact at,
given the liquidity mechanism TIP One facilitates for the vendor.
Our Investment Horizon
While TIP One shares are listed and tradable, investors are advised that as the company only realises and unlocks the
intrinsic value in its portfolio upon the disposal of, or maturity and unwinding of the BEE schemes in which it is invested,
investors should look to hold their TIP One shares for the long term in order to optimally benefit from such value unlock,
typically 5 years and longer.
Our Goals
Over and above offering investors access to a portfolio with very attractive return drivers, we also aim to:
• Assist in championing the asset class of Transformation Investments into the ethos of financial planning, retail
savers and institutional investing across the country
• Create a base of permanent black capital
• Play a meaningful role in transforming the financial services sector in South Africa
• Drive financial inclusion w.r.t. investors who would not otherwise be able to access such investments
Notwithstanding the immense challenges this year has presented, we remain excited by the prospects and opportunities
facing TIP One and look forward to executing these in the near future.
Regards
The TIP One Executive Team
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TIP One AFS
DIRECTORS' REPORT
The directors present their report for the 15 months ended 30 June 2020.
Review of activities
Main business and operations
The principal activity of the Company is to build a portfolio of assets by investing into listed companies through their Broad Based
Black Economic Empowerment (“B-BBEE”) schemes. There were no major changes to the business strategy during the financial
year.
The operating results and statement of financial position of the Company are fully set out in the attached financial statements
and do not in our opinion require any further comment.
Authorised Share Capital & Dividends
Transformational Investment Portfolio One Limited (“TIP One”) listed on the stock exchange operated by ZAR X on the 13th of
November 2019 with an authorised share capital of 10 000 000 000 ordinary shares. No dividends were declared or paid for the
period.
Compliance with B-BBEE Amendment Act
TIP One’s revenue is less than R 10 000 000, thereby qualifying for an Exempt Micro Enterprise (“EME”) black ownership score. TIP
One’s target for black ownership in terms of the design of the trading rules is to be more than 56% black owned. The black
ownership for TIP One is currently 64.60%, with black female ownership at 24.48% and female ownership at 28.48%, thereby
resulting in a Level 2 Score for B-BBEE. TIP One’s target for the board of directors is to be majority black (i.e. more than 51%). TIP
One’s current board of directors is representative of this target, with 5 of the 6 directors being black (representing 83.33%) and 2
of the 6 directors being black female (representing 33.33%).
Board of directors
Geoffrey Graham Blount (Chief Executive Officer) (49) (Appointed October 2017)
B.Com Honours (Corporate and Investment Finance) (WITS), CFA
After completing a BCom (Hons) in Corporate and Investment Finance at the University of the Witwatersrand (“Wits”), Mr Blount
lectured corporate finance at Wits. Mr Blount later joined Société Générale Frankel Pollak (later to become Sasfin Securities),
initially as an equity dealer and was later appointed as a private-client portfolio manager.
Mr Blount subsequently moved to BoE Private Bank where he was appointed as a portfolio manager before joining the Investment
Solutions’ team (Alexander Forbes Investments), where he headed up the manager research team. Over the next 10 years, while
the firm grew assets under management from R4 billion to R180 billion, Mr Blount extensively reviewed all of the institutional asset
managers in South Africa, as well as many managers in the United Kingdom and the United States, conducting over 2 000 face-toface manager reviews and due diligences. Mr Blount joined Cannon Asset Managers as chief executive officer in 2008 and was
subsequently appointed as the managing director of BayHill Capital from 2016 to 2018. Mr Blount has been building TIP One with
African Financial Group (“the Promoter”).
To ensure the continuation and sustainability of TIP One, a succession plan for the CEO needs to be developed.
Lemao Arthur Archibald Ditodi (Chief Financial Officer) (40) (Appointed August 2019)
B.Compt (Honours) CTA, CA(SA)
Prior to joining TIP One as financial director, Mr Ditodi gained extensive experience in Financial Services, Management Consulting,
B-BBEE and Tax Advisory. He served his training contract at KPMG Pretoria, then joined tax management services as a Senior Tax
Consultant.
He was then appointed as a Senior Consultant at the Black Lite Group where he lead ownership reviews on clients, engaging with
the Department of Trade and Industry (“DTI”) on policy review and partnering with University of South Africa (UNISA) and the South
African Institute of Chartered Accountants (SAICA) for reviews of the state of B-BBEE and ownership in the country at that point.
He was instrumental in gaining DTI tax allowances for strategic investments in manufacturing assets in renewable energy.
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TIP One AFS
DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
He then joined First National Bank Business Credit as Finance Manager, and then moved to First National Bank Strategic Projects.
He left the bank to pursue various entrepreneurial ventures including forming an investment Company (Kgabo Namela Investment
Holdings), the management of family businesses (with interests in tourism and accommodation), and as a trustee for the Igugulami
Charitable Trust, which seeks to provide financial and non-financial support to SME’s.
Kagisho Augustine Mahura (Independent Non-Executive Director) (47) (Appointed February 2018)
B.Bus.Sc, Post graduate diploma in Financial Planning, Master of Business Administration
Mr Mahura has worked in the investment and financial services industry since 1996 at an operational, management and executive
level. He has worked at Old Mutual Unit Trusts and Coronation Fund Managers and served at executive management level in both
companies.
Mr Mahura co-founded Gradidge-Mahura Investments Proprietary Limited, a successful wealth planning and advisory business, in
2008.
In 2015, he was elected chairperson of the Gauteng Regional Committee of the Financial Planning Institution. He has also served
on the board of Catalyst Fund Managers, a leading South African asset management business.
Hopolang Leeto Ntoi (Lead Independent Non-Executive Director) (39) (Appointed September 2019)
BSc (Eng), MSc (Eng), Master of Business Administration
Mr Ntoi is chief executive officer of Nala Growth Proprietary Limited, a boutique private equity, investment management and
transaction advisory outfit established in April 2018.
Mr Ntoi has vast experience in project development, project finance, deal origination, commercial due diligence, financial
modelling, deal structuring and re-structuring, and post-investment/portfolio management, all gained during an 8-year period
working for the Industrial Development Corporation (IDC). During this period, he participated in over 80 transactions (in a
significant number of which he was Transaction Lead), maintained a 100% credit committee approval rate, and was awarded Best
Dealmaker in 2015 and 2016 at the IDC.
Ntombomzi Ngada (Independent Non-Executive Director) (31) (Appointed September 2019)
Baccalaureus Legum (LLB)
Ms Ngada was admitted as an Attorney of the High Court of South Africa in the Western Cape High Court. Ms Ngada subsequently
specialised in commercial transactions at CHSM Attorneys, a commercial law firm based in Sandton, before opening her own
commercial law firm, Ngada Attorneys.
Ms Ngada also serves as a leader in the Black Management Forum and the National Association of Democratic Lawyers.
Dr Vuyokazi Felicity Mahlati (Non-Executive Chairperson) (55) (Appointed October 2017, Deceased 13 October 2020)
PhD (Public and Development Management), MSc (Social Policy & Planning) LSE, B.Sc
Dr Mahlati was the Non-Executive Chairperson of TIP One and served as a Director of African Financial Group. Dr Mahlati’s
experience and background was in development finance. In May 2010, she was appointed by the President of South Africa to serve
as one of the inaugural members of South Africa’s National Planning Commission for five years and was serving her second term
when she passed away in October 2020. She formed part of the team that released South Africa’s National Development Plan,
which was adopted as the national strategic framework by Cabinet and Parliament in 2012. She was also president of the African
Farmers Association of South Africa (AFASA), as well as the chairperson of the Advisory Panel on Land Reform and Agriculture.
Her directorships included non-executive director of Lion of Africa Insurance Company, a subsidiary of the JSE-listed Brimstone
Investment Company. She served two terms as the Chairperson of the South African Post Office, and two terms as member of the
Financial Markets Advisory Board as well as member of the Financial Services Board Licensing Committee. She was a director of
Alexkor Mining Board, and fund manager Umbono Capital (now One Stone).
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TIP One AFS
DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
Investment Committee
The Investment Committee was formed as a sub-committee of the board of directors. The board of directors delegated the
mandate to review transactions to the investment committee. The members of the Investment Committee are listed below:
-

Johannes Cornelis Van Niekerk (representing RAC Advisory)
Lilitha Mahlati (representing African Financial Group)
Hopolang Leeto Ntoi (Chairperson)
Kagisho Augustine Mahura (Independent Non-Executive)
Geoffrey Graham Blount (Chief Executive Officer) and
Lemao Arthur Archibald Ditodi (Chief Financial Officer).

Johannes Cornelis (Jan) Van Niekerk (Representing RAC Advisory) (48)
BCom (Hons) (Maths), FIA, CFA
Jan has over 20 years of experience in the investment industry. He served as Chief Investment Officer of Citadel Investment
Services Proprietary Limited, a wealth management firm with a broad international reach, after which he became the chief
executive officer of its parent Company, the JSE-listed, Peregrine Holdings Limited, a diversified financial services firm.
Jan joined Regarding Capital Management Proprietary Limited in April 2013, as group chief executive and is an executive director
of RECM and Calibre Limited.
Lilitha Mahlati (Representing African Financial Group) (32)
Masters in International Business (Hult International Business School), B.Sc (Hons) Finance and Accounting
Ms Mahlati has worked at Barclays Capital (where she joined the graduate programme and was seconded to the United Kingdom),
as well as in the private equity market before joining AFG. She has participated in projects with a combined value of ±US$3 billion,
including raising project finance for infrastructure (energy, real estate, healthcare), as well as private equity fundraising and deal
execution. She serves as director on various portfolio companies with African Financial Group and manages investments and
capital raising initiatives across African Financial Group.
She is a member of the BRICS Business Council Financial Services Working Group and is a founding director of Mbewu Movement
Women’s Network and a board member of SNA Civil Consulting Engineers (Pty) Ltd.
Other Directorships held by Board of Directors
Geoffrey Blount
SACVIA (Pty) Ltd, Trackvia (Pty) Ltd, Kjeldsholm Invest South Africa (Pty) Ltd, Nala Private Equity (Pty) Ltd.
Lemao Ditodi
Kgabo Business Advisory, Kgabo Namela Investment Holdings, Thabiso Guesthouse CC, Redhouse Students CC.
Kagisho Mahura
Gradidridge Mahura Investments (Pty) Ltd, AvSEC Africa (Pty) Ltd, Webster United One (Pty) Ltd, Vantrude Farming (Pty) Ltd.
Hopolang Ntoi
Nala Growth (Pty) Ltd, Nala Private Equity (Pty) Ltd, Ntlo Ntle Projects (Pty) Ltd, Echelon Equity (Pty) Ltd.
Ntombomzi Ngada
Notyesi Ngada Attorneys Inc, En Volant (Pty) Ltd, NKL Community Projects NPO.
Dr Vuyo Mahlati
African Financial Group (Pty) Ltd, Siyaya TV (Pty) Ltd, Evili Business Linkages (Pty) Ltd, Trade and Investment Kwa Zulu Natal,
Fukama Development Services (Pty) Ltd Sangena Capital and Investment Holdings (Pty) Ltd, African Farmers Association for South
Africa (Non-Profit Company).
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TIP One AFS
DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)

Directors Report
In this inaugural Executive Director’s report, the period ending 30 June 2020 has proven to be a dynamic year for TIP One.
TIP One listed on the stock exchange operated by ZAR X on the 13th of November 2019 and raised a total of R2 324 974 in capital
upon the listing. This was a significant landmark, with the journey to listing taking approximately 2 years.
The first year of operations has proven to be both exciting and incredibly challenging. Given that it was the first year of operations,
a loss was expected, and TIP One reported a total loss of R2 343 050, mainly in respect of the listing costs, fees to the professional
advisory firms and operational costs to maintain the business during its first year of operations.
TIP One’s business model is dependent on two key drivers, namely:
•
•

Raising capital from companies, individuals, institutional investors, and other investment funds, applying that capital to
invest into BEE schemes that are in turn invested into listed companies; or
Acquiring investments into B-BBEE schemes and paying for the acquisition using TIP One shares.

Change of financial year end
The Company has changed its financial year end from 31 March to 30 June to benchmark itself to industry, other financial services
and investment holding companies. The financial statements for the current period are therefore for the fifteen-month period
from 1 April 2019 to 30 June 2020. The comparative financial statements covered the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019.
The comparative amounts presented in the financial statements including the related notes are not entirely comparable. The
Company was incorporated in 2017, but there was no activity in prior years.
COVID-19 Assessment
COVID-19 was first diagnosed in the country in February 2020, which was then followed by increases in the number of reported
cases and a subsequent lockdown which was implemented on 27 March 2020. Most businesses were severely impacted by the
lockdown, and TIP One was no exception.
As a result of uncertainties COVID-19 has generated in the economy and investment markets, most firms and investors have
chosen to defer decision-making on potential new investments. Falling stock prices (especially for domestically focused listed
companies) also placed strain on their associated B-BBEE schemes.
This resulted in a reluctance from most companies, asset management and boutique funds, and individuals which TIP One had
previously engaged, or engaged with during lockdown, to transact.
Going concern assessment
We draw attention to the fact that at 30 June 2020 the Company had accumulated losses of R 2 343 050 and that the Company's
total liabilities exceed its assets by R 17 642.
The directors believe that the Company will continue to operate for the foreseeable future as a going concern due to the strategic
relationship entered into with Baphalane Ba Mantserre Investment Holdings Proprietary Limited(“BBMIH”) which has confirmed
an initial investment of R5 million into TIP One (as announced on ZAPS on 5 November 2020), which will be followed by a road
show to raise further capital into TIP One. Accordingly, the financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The
directors are not aware of any new material changes that may adversely impact the Company. The directors are also not aware of
any material non-compliance with statutory or regulatory requirements or of any pending changes to legislation which may affect
the Company.

9

TIP One AFS
DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
Events after reporting date
Changes to the Board of Directors
As announced on ZAPS on 14 October 2020, the Board was saddened to advise shareholders that the chairperson, Dr Vuyokazi
Felicity Mahlati, passed-away on the 13th of October 2020. The Board values and appreciates her contribution towards TIP One and
South Africa. May her soul rest in peace and rise in glory.
Assessment of events after reporting date
The board is not aware of any matter or circumstance arising since the reporting date, to the date of this report, that could have
a material effect on the financial position of the Company, except the continuation of the risk-adjusted approach implemented by
the South African Government as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic and outbreak. TIP One was impacted by the pandemic in its
ability to enter transactions and raise capital. However, despite the challenging environment, TIP One secured a strategic
relationship with BBMIH, who have confirmed an initial investment of R5 million into TIP One, thereafter followed by a road show
to raise further capital into TIP One.
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TIP One AFS
DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
King Report on Corporate Governance
Board of directors – Compliance Statement
The board worked to apply the principles set out in the King IV Report on Corporate Governance, to establish a board of directors
with a balance of skills, knowledge, and independence to provide guidance and leadership to TIP One. The board of directors has
also worked to apply the applicable provisions of the Companies Act 71 of 2008. Non-compliance issues were noted with regards
to the meetings and the sub-committees of the board of directors, however the board has worked to resolve the non-compliance
issues noted where identified.
Composition of the board of directors
The composition of the board comprises a balance of executive and non-executive directors, with the majority being independent
non-executive directors. The target for the board of directors is to be majority black (i.e. >51%), however the target for gender still
needs to be set.
The board of directors comprises an appropriate balance of skills, knowledge, experience, diversity, and independence for it to
discharge its governance role and responsibilities objectively and effectively. The profiles of the directors are included in the
director’s report.
The board has worked to lead ethically and effectively and should, individually and collectively, conduct themselves in a manner
that exhibit integrity, competence, responsibility, accountability, fairness, and transparency. A clear balance of power and
authority exists at a Board level to ensure that no single director has unfettered decision-making powers.
Following the passing of the chairperson after the year end, the board of directors is in the process of considering the appointment
of a new chairperson.
Focus of the board of directors
The primary focus of the board of directors for this period was the following:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Reviewing the listing framework
Reviewing and assessing the investment pipeline
Developing strategy and response to COVID-19 pandemic and outbreak
Reviewing and approving the transaction with Baphalane Ba Mantserre Investment Holdings (“BBMIH”)
Marketing and retail distribution of TIP One
Reviewing the financial performance, budgets, and targets of TIP One
Developing the annual workflow plan
Developing the firm’s operational and governance framework.

Board Meetings
A board meeting was held for the period on the 29th of February 2020 and all board members were in attendance. Following the
COVID-19 pandemic, the subsequent lock-down and resultant lack of investor or transaction appetite for TIP One, there was no
activity in the business from end March to around mid-August. The board of directors were kept fully appraised of the matters
affecting the Company over this period through a comprehensive management report. The management report was sent to the
board of directors on the 19th of June 2020 in lieu of a meeting being held.
Terms – Executive Directors
The Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer are both contracted with TIP One for 2 years, with the aim and objective of
promoting and growing TIP One, managing the relationships with ZAR X, stakeholders, and service providers. The notice period for
both executive directors is a calendar months’ notice, with both executives being accountable to the board and the board being
accountable to shareholders.
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TIP One AFS
DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
King Report on Corporate Governance (Continued)
Terms – Non-Executive Directors
The Non-Executive Directors are contracted with TIP One for a minimum of 12-months but can serve for a term up to 3 years. At
the end of end the 3-year term, the Non-Executive directors are eligible for re-election.
Evaluation of the board of directors
The Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer both have their performance measures set out in their contracts, whereas
the roles and responsibilities of the Non-Executive Directors are included in their contracts. The board of directors were able to
achieve certain outcomes for the period. However, certain development areas have been noted and included below to be
addressed going forward. The delegation of authority framework will be reviewed and monitored to confirm whether it clarifies
the role and authority of directors.
Access to professional services
TIP One has appointed Questco Corporate Advisory as the appointed advisors and CIS Company Secretaries (Pty) Ltd (“CIS”) as the
company secretary in accordance with the ZAR X Listings Requirements.
Roles and responsibilities of the board of directors
The TIP One board of directors was able to achieve the following outcomes:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

•

•

Providing strategic direction to the TIP One, especially leading up to and following the listing of TIP One on ZAR X on 13
November 2019
Determining the Company’s purpose, values, and stakeholders relevant to its business
Ensuring that procedures are in place to monitor and evaluate the implementation of its strategies, policies, business
plans, senior management performance criteria and corporate governance processes
The review and approval of financial objectives, plans and actions of the Company
Demonstrate ethical and effective leadership, integrity, and judgement. This was demonstrated by the review of policies
and procedures along with the ongoing assessment of the independence and effectiveness of the board of directors
Ensuring that the Company complies with relevant laws, regulations, and codes of best business practice
The establishment of sub-committees to facilitate efficient decision making. These include the establishment of an Audit
and Risk Committee, Remuneration Committee, Transformation, Social and Ethics Committee and Investment
Committee. Never the less, with the exception of the Investment Committee, given the impact of COVID-19 and its
resultant lack of business activity, the albeit limited business of the other committees was dealt with at the board level
and the other committees did not meet. Given the (post reporting period) investment commitments TIP One has received,
the committees will begin meeting
The board also resolved to align the board meetings with the sub-committee meetings and the election of the members
of the sub-committees will need to be ratified by the shareholders at the next AGM. This and any remedial actions taken
will be discussed in the sub-committee sections of the Corporate Governance section of this report
The evaluation of the Company’s ability to continue trading as a going concern.

The following roles and responsibilities still need to be addressed by the board of directors
•
•
•
•
•

Ensuring that a succession plan is in place for the Chief Executive Officer
The regular review of processes and procedures to ensure the effectiveness of the Company’s internal systems of control
Identification of key risk areas and key performance indicators, which should be regularly monitored with particular
attention given to information technology (IT) and internal controls
Ensuring that an IT governance strategy is formulated and implemented
Ensuring that there is a policy and targets on the promotion of racial and gender diversity at board level.
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TIP One AFS
DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
King Report on Corporate Governance (Continued)
The Investment Committee
Both the Promotor (“African Financial Group”) and the Investment Advisor (” RAC Advisory”) will be entitled to appoint one
nominated representative each to the TIP One Investment Committee.
Investment Committee Meetings
The first Investment Committee meeting was held on the 29th of February 2020. All the Investment Committee members were
present for the first meeting. Potential transactions were identified, pending funding and willing vendors. Unfortunately, due to
the COVID-19 lockdown, and resultant lack of investor or transaction appetite, the identified potential transactions were not
implemented, nor were any new transactions identified over this period. Hence there was no need for the Investment Committee
to meet again over the reporting period.
Overview
The purpose and function of the Investment Committee is:
•
•
•

to consider recommendations from management and the Investment Advisor for acquisitions and disposals
to authorise such transactions that fall within its approved mandate
to review, monitor and manage the portfolio structure in terms of the risk and return objectives of TIP One.

Mandate of the Investment Committee
The Board delegates its authority to the Investment Committee regarding investment decisions. The Investment Committee is
supported by TIP One’s Executive Management, the Promotor, the Investment Advisor, and other service providers.
The Investment Committee is mandated by the Board of Tip One to authorise:
•

•
•

Approved targeted investments. This may take the form of:
o A general approval to acquire shares / investments in an entity (i.e. the targeted investment is on the “Buy list”) and
discretion is given to the Executive Management to continue acquiring assets in the approved entity until such time
as the entity is no longer on the “Buy list”. “Buy list” investments will be given a guided price range
o A specific approval for a specific transaction within a specific price range
Asset disposals (general or specific approvals) and
Changes to the portfolio of holdings of TIP One.

All transactions authorised by the Investment Committee shall be reported to the Board after such authorisation.
Mandate of Executive Management
Unless specified by the Investment Committee, the manner and implementation of the Investment Committee decisions shall be
left to the discretion of the Executive Management team.
Board approval for transactions
While the Board has delegated its authority to the Investment Committee with regard to investment decisions, the Investment
Committee does not have the authority to approve any share issuances, share repurchases, the use of leverage and changes in
capital structure, that may be required to give effect to a transaction.
Where such Board approval is required, the Investment Committee will ensure that a detailed motivation is presented to the
Board, either at the next Board meeting, or by round robin if the circumstances dictate, for the Board to review and approve, or
refer on to Shareholder for approval (as the circumstances may dictate).
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DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
Investment Universe
Given the nature and opportunity set with regards to BEE investments and structures, TIP One’s investments may include BEE
Schemes, convertible debt structures, debt and debt like investments that can meet the return objectives of TIP One, unlisted or
over-the-counter equity securities, appropriate funds, special purpose vehicles, derivatives of such securities and direct
investments in listed companies or components thereof.
In order to generate a return on its unutilised cash resources, the Company may also invest these funds in a prudent combination
of bank deposits, suitable short-term money market instruments and market-facing protected equity strategies, Collective
Investment Schemes, ETFs and market facing protected equity strategies.
TIP One may also invest into derivatives for the purpose of capital protection or structuring, but not speculation.
Diversification
TIP One will seek to build a portfolio of investments that provides an appropriate level of diversification across different industries
and sectors. It is the intention that no single investment should constitute more than 33.3% of the overall value of the Portfolio.
There may be times when this threshold might be breached, but it is not intended that such breach will continue for an extended
period. Initially however, the Portfolio will have periods of high concentration, with the targeted level of diversification only
achieved as it grows through acquisition.
Investment Criteria
The following factors must be taken into consideration when making decisions:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Assessed for the life of the scheme (i.e. assume that the investment will be held until the scheme matures)
Assessment and understanding of both the underlying company and the BEE scheme
Valuations with regards to both the underlying company and the BEE scheme
Assessment of the risks associated with the investment
Portfolio construction and diversification factors and
Other factors that the Investment Committee deem appropriate with regards to the transaction.

Technology and information
TIP One has technology operating procedures in place, which include the establishment of a Company server and backup storage
facility for TIP One information. The executive directors have remote access to the server, which enabled them to operate remotely
during the COVID 19 pandemic. No major incidents were reported this year in this regard.
TIP One performs a combination of in-house functions (e.g. financial reporting, payroll management) but also makes use of service
providers for outsourcing services (e.g. validation and secretarial services). Service level agreements are currently in place to
provide guidance around the technology and information governance services rendered by 3 rd parties. These will be reviewed and
monitored on an ongoing basis.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
Audit and Risk Committee
Members of the Audit and Risk Committee: Dr Vuyo Mahlati*, Hopolang Ntoi and Kagisho Mahura. Please refer to page 4 for the
age, qualifications, and experience of the directors.
*Dr Vuyo Mahlati passed-away on 13 October 2020.
For reasons explained above and below, the audit and risk committee members did not meet during the period and the report of
the audit and risk committee is therefore not presented in terms of the Companies Act and the King IV Report on Corporate
Governance. Following the listing, TIP One has not yet held its Annual General Meeting and the audit and risk committee members
have not yet been ratified by the shareholders (to be done so at the first Annual General Meeting). Remedial action and
implementation taken are documented below.
SizweNtsalubaGobodo Grant Thornton Inc. were appointed as the statutory auditors for TIP One prior to listing. Prior to listing,
agreed upon procedures were performed for a Regulation 79 certificate which was required for purposes of the prospectus used
to list on the ZAR X.
Dr Vuyo Mahlati had been nominated to serve as the chairperson of the audit and risk committee. However, at the board meeting
which was held on the 29th of February 2020, it was noted that due to the requirement that the chairperson of the Board was not
permitted to serve as the chairperson of the audit and risk committee, in addition to the requirement for the majority of the
members of the committee being independent non-executive directors, the decision was taken to revise the appointment of the
chairperson of the audit and risk committee. The board resolved to appoint an independent non-executive director as the
chairperson the audit and risk committee. At this meeting, the interim financial report was presented, reviewed, and approved by
the board of directors. However, following the COVID-19 pandemic, subsequent lock-down and the resultant lack of investor or
transaction appetite for TIP One, there was no activity in the business from the end March to around mid-August. The board of
directors was kept fully appraised over this period through a comprehensive management report (amongst other feedback over
the period) sent to the board of directors on 19 June 2020 and in lieu of a meeting being held.
Responsibilities of the Audit and Risk Committee
As a result of the committee not having meetings, none of the responsibilities as per the requirements of King IV and the Companies
Act were performed. The Board however did exercise oversight of the finance and reporting function. Once the election of the
Audit and Risk Committee members is ratified by the shareholders, the following procedures will be implemented by the members
of the Committee:
Auditors and external audit:
•
•

The Committee will be requested to recommend to the board which firm(s) should be appointed as external auditor(s).
The Committee will, on an annual basis (and more frequently as required):
o Evaluate the independence and effectiveness of the external auditor and consider whether any non-audit
services rendered by such auditors will be likely to substantively impair their independence
o Consider, on an annual basis, and satisfy itself as to the appropriateness of the expertise and experience of the
chief financial officer
o Evaluate the performance of the external auditor
o Assess the tenure of the external audit firm
o Oversee the rotation of the designated audit partner
o Consider and make recommendations on the appointment, retention, resignation, or dismissal of the external
auditor
o Discuss and review with the external auditor, before the audit commences, the audit engagement letter, the
terms, nature and scope of the audit function, procedure and engagement, the audit fee, and ensure coordination and maintenance of a professional relationships
o Agree to the timing and nature of reports required to be provided by the external auditor
o Review the arrangements in place for combined assurance and the effectiveness thereof.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
King Report on Corporate Governance (Continued)
Financial statements
The Committee will examine and review the annual financial statements, prior to submission to the board for approval, focusing
particularly on:
• The implementation of new systems
• Tax and litigation matters involving uncertainty
• Any changes in accounting policies and practices
• Major judgmental areas
• Significant adjustments arising from the audit
• The basis on which the company has been determined a going concern
• Capital adequacy
• Internal controls
• Compliance with accounting standards, the ZARX Listings Requirements and all relevant statutory and regulatory
requirements
• The efficiency of major adjustments processed at year end.
The review of any special documents (such as prospectuses, circulars, and trading updates) when applicable.
Internal control environment:
An important function of the Audit and Risk Committee is the oversight and monitoring of the effective functioning of the internal
control environment. Given the size and complexity of the business, the Company does not foresee at this point the formulation
of an internal audit function or committee. This function will be performed by the Audit and Risk committee. This will also be
reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Risk Management and Insurance
A crucial role of the Audit and Risk Committee will be the overall responsibility for the integrity, reliability and efficiency of the
company’s risk management strategy/policy and insurance portfolio.
Reporting and accountability:
The chairperson of the Committee will:
• Account to the board for the activities and execution of functions of the Audit and Risk Committee and make
recommendations to the board concerning the adoption of the financial statements and any other matters arising from
the above responsibilities; and
• Attend the annual general meeting to answer questions in respect of matters falling within the ambit of the Audit and Risk
Committee.
Company Secretarial Function
The company secretarial function is performed by CIS Company Secretaries (Pty) Ltd (“CIS”) represented by Craig Laidlaw who is a
qualified chartered company secretary. A service level agreement is currently in place between TIP One specifying the services
rendered by CIS to TIP One, and this is assessed on an annual basis to review the nature of the services rendered and fees charged
by CIS to TIP One. The Company Secretary was present at the board meeting, recorded the minutes, does not participate in the
decision making of TIP One or serve as a director on the board of directors. CIS communicates regularly with the management of
TIP One to confirm the nature and scope of services rendered. Any changes to the scope of services must be agreed to by
management prior to implementation. Based on this assessment, TIP One maintains an arm’s length relationship with CIS. The
Board has considered and satisfied itself as to the competence, qualifications, and experience of the Company Secretary.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
King Report on Corporate Governance (continued)
Transformation, Social and Ethics Committee
Members: Dr Vuyo Mahlati*, Hopolang Ntoi and Ntombomzi Ngada.
*Dr Vuyo Mahlati passed-away on 13 October 2020.
The transformation, social and ethics committee aims to oversee and report on the Company’s organisational ethics, responsible
corporate citizenship, sustainable development, and stakeholder relationships.
Given the lack of activity over this period with no investments being made by TIP One, no meetings were held by the
transformation, social and ethics committee during this period, and as a result, a report was not prepared and the roles and
responsibilities were not affected. This will be reviewed and monitored in the following financial year (given the investment
commitments TIP One has received subsequent to the reporting period) when the existing members are up for re-election at the
Annual General Meeting, and new member(s) are elected to this sub-committee.
Roles and Responsibilities of the Transformation, Social and Ethics Committee
The functions and responsibilities of the Committee will include, but not be limited to:
• Overseeing the Company’s transformation objectives as they pertain to its underlying investments
• Monitoring the Company’s activities, having regard to relevant legislation, codes of best practice, and regarding matters
relating to social and economic development,
• Good corporate citizenship, including:
o The promotion of equality and fair practices
o Contributing to the development of the communities in which the Company’s activities are predominantly
conducted, or within which its products or services are predominantly marketed
o Maintaining a record of sponsorship, donations, and charitable giving
o The environment, health, and public safety, including the impact of the Company’s activities and of its products or
services
o Consumer relationships, including the Company’s advertising and public relations and compliance with consumer
protection laws
• Labour and employment, including:
o The Company’s standing in terms of the International Labour Organisation Protocol on decent work and working
conditions
o The Company’s employment relationships and its contribution toward the educational development of its
employees; and
o Consulting with the Company’s social and ethics advisory panel with respect to any matter within the mandate of the
Committee.
Stakeholder engagement
Suppliers
TIP One has service level agreements in place with service providers, which include the ZAR X, Questco, RAC Advisory, African
Financial Group, Computershare, and CIS amongst others. TIP One engages regularly with these respective stakeholders on the
status of the Company, transactions, investments, and potential investments.
The future focus will be on navigating through the COVID-19 pandemic, ensuring compliance with laws, regulations and the listing
requirements, monitoring the service level agreements with the respective stakeholders and engaging more regularly with the
shareholders of TIP One.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
King Report on Corporate Governance (continued)
Investors
As TIP One grows its investor base, and begins making investment allocations, increasing engagement, sharing of information and
keeping investors appraised with regards to TIP Ones investment portfolio and prospects will become an important component of
our communication strategies, especially given the retail investor market we are targeting. Hence investor education will become
critical with our distribution partners and their networks.
Investee Schemes
Once TIP One has made its first investment allocations, TIP One will prioritise building a strong and proactive relationship with
the respective B-BBEE schemes. The B-BBEE schemes that TIP One invests into obtain via TIP One a significant long term strategic
and professional investment partner with B-BBEE credentials , and through a collaborative relationship with the such schemes,
work to assist the B-BBEE schemes to enhance value for their participants
Broader Stakeholders and Community Impact
As TIP One grows and develops its resources, our broader stakeholder engagement objectives include over time to:
•
•
•

Embed the asset class of transformation investments, which still needs to be developed as an asset class, into the ethos
of financial planning, retail savers and institutional investing across the country
Develop transformation investments which are easily understood by, and accessible to individuals and institutional
investors
Play a meaningful role in transforming the financial services sector in South Africa

Remuneration & Nomination Committee
Members: Dr Vuyo Mahlati, Hopolang Ntoi and Kagisho Mahura.
The initial capital raised for TIP One was primarily used for listing and operational costs. The Executive Directors agreed to waive
their salaries as a commitment to ensure the ongoing sustainability of TIP One until further capital is raised. Similar commitment
was received from the board of directors with regards to their board fees.
With that, it was agreed that the remuneration and nominations committee would resume meetings when TIP One has raised
further capital and is able to pay director’s fees, salaries, and wages, with the Board overseeing such functions in the interim.
Overview
The remuneration and nomination committee assesses and recommends to the Board the remuneration and incentivisation of the
Company’s Directors and oversees the process for nominating, electing and appointing members of the Board, succession planning
for Directors and the evaluation of the performance of the Board.
Roles and Responsibilities of the Remuneration and Nominations Committee
The chairperson of the board will not chair the Remuneration Committee but may be a member of it. However, the chairperson of
the board will be the chairperson of the Nomination Committee.
The following persons shall attend all Committee meetings by invitation, in an ex-officio capacity, unless otherwise decided by the
chairperson of the Committee:
• The Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”)
• The Chief Financial Officer (“CFO”)
• The executive responsible for Human Resources (if any); and
• Any other persons, as determined by the chairperson required to attend a specific meeting (or part thereof) to report on
any other matter.
CIS shall be the secretary of the Committee.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
King Report on Corporate Governance (continued)
Expand for Independent
Auditor's Report for year ends on or after 15 December 2016 (incorporating SAAPS3 May 2019)
Remuneration
policy
The executive directors have agreed to waive their salaries until TIP One reaches a capital and/or total transaction target size of
R75 million, subject to review. At this point, TIP One will develop the remuneration policy and compensate employees and
directors at market related rates based on performance.
Conclusion
An expression of gratitude to promoter (African Financial Group), investment advisory firm (RAC Advisory), professional advisory
firm (“Questco”), Company secretary (“CIS”) and validation agents (“Computershare”), ZAR X, statutory auditors (SNG Grant
Thornton), the TIP One board of directors and last, but not least, the shareholders for the support over the last year. We look
forward to exciting opportunities ahead and growing from strength to strength.
Yours faithfully

Hopolang Ntoi (Lead Independent Non-Executive Director)
25 November 2020
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DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES AND APPROVAL STATEMENT
The directors are required by the Companies Act of South Africa, 2008 (Act 71 of 2008), as amended to maintain adequate
accounting records and are responsible for the content and integrity of the financial statements and related financial information
included in this report. It is their responsibility to ensure that the financial statements fairly present the statement of financial
position, results of operations and business of the Company, and explain the transactions and state of affairs of the business of
the Company at the reporting date.
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, as the financial
reporting framework, and based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied throughout the Company and
supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates.
The directors acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established by the
Company and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the directors to meet these
responsibilities, the board sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error or loss in a cost-effective manner.
The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective accounting
procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored throughout
the Company and all employees are required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the Company's business is
conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach.
The focus of risk management in the Company is on identifying, assessing, managing, and monitoring all known forms of risk across
the Company. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the Company endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that
appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems, and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined procedures
and constraints.
The board of directors is of the opinion, that the system of internal control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records
may be relied on for the preparation of the financial statements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide
only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.
The directors have reviewed the Company's cash flow forecast for the next 12 months from date of approval of the financial
statements and, in the light of this review and the current financial position, they are satisfied that the Company has, or has access
to, adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.
The external auditors are responsible for independently examining and reporting on the financial statements and their report is
presented on pages 2 to 24.
The financial statements set out on pages 25 to 43 which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were approved by the
board on 25 November 2020 and are signed on their behalf by the directors.

Director: Geoff Blount

Director: Lemao Ditodi

26 November 2020

26 November 2020
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Declaration by the Company Secretary in respect of section 88(2)(e) of the Companies Act
In accordance with the provisions of section 88(2)(e) of the Companies Act, I certify that for the year ended 30 June
2020 the company has lodged with the Companies and Intellectual Property Commission all such returns as are required
of a company in terms of the Companies Act, and that all such returns are true, correct and up-to-date.

CIS Company Secretaries Proprietary Limited
Company secretary

25 November 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

SNG Grant Thornton
20 Morris Street East
Woodmead, 2191
P.O. Box 2939
Saxonwold, 2132
T +27 (0) 11 231 0600

To the Shareholders of Transformation Investment Portfolio One Limited

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Transformation Investment Portfolio One Limited set out on pages 22 to 39 , which comprise
the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2020, and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement
of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Transformation Investment Portfolio
One Limited as at 30 June 2020, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act of South Africa.
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the entity
in accordance with the sections 290 and 291 of the Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors’ Code of Professional Conduct for Registered
Auditors (Revised January 2018), parts 1 and 3 of the Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors’ Code of Professional Conduct for Registered
Auditors (Revised November 2018) (together the IRBA Codes) and other independence requirements applicable to performing audits of
financial statements in South Africa. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities, as applicable, in accordance with the IRBA Codes and
in accordance with other ethical requirements applicable to performing audits in South Africa. The IRBA Codes are consistent with the
corresponding sections of the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants and the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International
Independence Standards) respectively. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.
Material uncertainty relating to going concern
We draw attention to Note 19 in the financial statements, which indicates that the Company incurred accumulated losses of R2 343 050
during the period ended 30 June 2020 and, as of that date, the Company’s total liabilities exceed its total assets by R17 642. As stated in Note
19, these events or conditions, along with other matters as set forth in Note 19, indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the Material Uncertainty Related to
Going Concern section, we have not identified any other key audit matters.
Other information
The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the document titled
“Transformational Investment Portfolio One Limited Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020”, which includes the Directors’ Report
and the Company Secretary’s Certification as required by the Companies Act of South Africa and Supplementary information out set on page 40.
The other information does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s reports thereon.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements
The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act of South Africa, and for such internal control as the directors determine as
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intends to liquidate the
company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:
•

•
•
•

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.
Conclude on the appropriateness of the director’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

23

•
•

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entity or business activities to express an opinion on
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit. We remain solely responsible for our
audit opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In terms of the IRBA Rule published in Government Gazette Number 39475 dated 4 December 2015, we report that SNG Grant Thornton Inc has been
the auditor of Transformation Investment Portfolio One Limited for 2 years.

_________________________________
Patience Bhebhe
SizweNtsalubaGobodo Grant Thornton Inc.
Director
Registered Auditor
26 November 2020

20 Morris Street East
Woodmead

24

TIP One AFS
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Figures in South African Rands
Current assets
Other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Total current assets

Notes

3
4

15 Months
2020

12 Months 2019
*Restated

4 411
157 981
162 392

10 000
10 000

162 392

10 000

2 323 814
(2 343 050)
1 594
(17 642)

100
2 462
2 562

7

8 306

7 438

6

170 468
1 260
180 034

7 438

162 392

10 000

Total assets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Issued capital
Accumulated loss
Day One Gain Reserves
Total equity
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Loan from shareholder
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Unallocated deposits
Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

5
15

*Refer to note 15
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TIP One AFS
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Figures in South African Rands
Administrative expenses
Other expenses

Notes
8
9

15 Months
2020
(428 997)
(1 917 615)

12 Months
2019
-

Loss from operating activities

10

(2 346 612)

-

Finance income
Finance costs

11
12

4 411
(849)

-

Loss for the year

(2 343 050)

-

Other comprehensive income or loss
Total comprehensive loss

(2 343 050)

-

Other comprehensive loss
Total comprehensive loss

2 323 814
1 346 878

(1.
Loss per share (Note 20)
73)
Diluted losses per share are equal to earnings/losses per share because there are no dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue.
(2 343 050)
Attributable to ordinary shareholders
Basic loss for the year
Number of shares in issue
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
Basic loss per share

(2 343 050)
2 323 814
2 1323
339814
133
1 346(1.74)
878
-

(1.
73)

100
100
-

-
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TIP One AFS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Figures in South African Rands

Issued capital

Day One
Gain Reserve
*Restated

Accumulated
loss

Total

Changes in equity
Issue of shares – TIP One
Day One Gain recognised on advance of AFG Loan
Amortisation of Day One Gain
Balance on 31 March 2019

100
100

Balance on 1 April 2019

3 138
(676)

-

100
3 138
(676)

2 462

-

2 562

100

2 462

-

2 562

2 323 714
-

(868)

(2 343 050)
-

Changes in equity
Total comprehensive income
Issue of shares - TIP One
Amortisation Day One Gain Reserve
Balance at 30 June 2020
Notes

2 323 814
5

1 594

(2 343 050)

(2 343 050)
2 323 714
(868)
(17 642)

15

27

TIP One AFS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Figures in South African Rands

Note

Cash flows used in operations
Loss for the year

15 Months
2020

12 Months
2019

(2 343 050)

-

(4 411)
849

-

Adjustments to reconcile loss
Adjustments for finance income
Adjustments for finance costs
Adjustments for increase in trade and other payables
Total adjustments to reconcile loss
Net cash flows used in operations

170 468
166 906
(2 176 144)
(849)

Interest paid
Net cash flows used in operating activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issuing shares
Loans received from shareholders

(2 176 993)
5
7

Cash flows from financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

4

100

2 324 974
-

9 900

2 324 974

10 000

147 981

10 000

10 000
157 981

10 000
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TIP One AFS
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1. General information
Transformational Investment Portfolio One Limited (“the Company”) is an Investment Holding Company which is building a
portfolio by investing into listed companies through their respective B-BBEE schemes.
The Annual Financial Statements have been audited by the Company’s external auditors, SizweNtsalubaGobodo Grant Thornton
Inc.
The Company’s directors take full responsibility for the preparation of this report. The preparation of the Company’s results was
supervised by the Chief Financial Officer, Lemao Ditodi CA(SA).
The Company, which is listed on the ZAR X, is incorporated as an Investment Holding Company, and domiciled in South Africa.
The address of its registered office is Suite 807, 8th Floor, 16 Baker Street, Rosebank, Johannesburg, 2196.
2. Basis of preparation and summary of significant accounting policies
The Annual Financial Statements of TIP One, for the period ended 30 June 2020, have been prepared on a going concern basis as discussed
in the directors responsibility and approval statement on page 27 in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”),
SAICA Financial Reporting Guides as issued by the Accounting Practices Committee, the Financial Pronouncements as issued by the
Financial Reporting Standards Council as well as the requirements of the Companies Act, 71 of 2008 of South Africa and the listing
requirements of ZAR X Proprietary Limited, a licensed stock exchange.
The accounting policies applied by the Company in the preparation of these Annual Financial Statements are in accordance with IFRS. The
financial results have been prepared on the historical cost basis and incorporate the principal accounting policies below. The Annual
Financial Statements are presented in South African Rands and rounded to the nearest Rand.
The preparation of Annual Financial Statements in accordance with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise judgement in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies.
2.1 Financial instruments
Classification
The Company classifies financial assets and financial liabilities into the following categories on initial recognition:
• Financial assets measured at amortised cost
• Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Classification for financial assets under IFRS 9 is dependent on the business model in which the financial asset is managed and its
contractual cash flows and therefore financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Company
changes its business model for managing the financial assets.
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:
• It is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and
• Its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.
The classification of financial liabilities measured at amortised cost is dependent on the financial liability and is assessed on a case by case
basis. Financial liabilities that have known cash flows at pre-determined dates or are based on invoiced amounts from suppliers are
classified as financial liabilities at amortised cost.
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial instruments at amortised cost are initially measured at fair value including transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
financial instrument.
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The Company performs an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at a portfolio level as this
best reflects the way in which the financial asset is managed, and information is provided to management. The information considered
includes:
• Management's strategy in generating returns from the financial asset in the form of interest, dividends, capital growth or a
combination of these
• how the performance of the financial assets is evaluated and reported to the directors of the Company
• the risks associated with the financial assets and how the risks are managed and
• the frequency, volume, and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and expectations
about future sales activity.
Financial assets that are held for contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principle and interest are carried at amortised
cost.
For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is
defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding
during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well
as a profit margin.
In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company considers the
contractual terms of the instrument which includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could
change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment the
following are considered by the Company:
•
•
•
•

contingent events that could change the amount or timing of cash flows
terms that may adjust the contractual rate, including variable-rate features
pre-payment, extension features or related penalties and
terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets.

Subsequent measurement
Financial assets at amortised cost
Included in this category are cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables. These assets are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss.
Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are initially measured at fair value, and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.
Derecognition
Any interest in transferred financial assets that qualify for derecognition that is created or retained by the Company is recognised
as a separate asset or liability in the statement of financial position. On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the carrying amount of the asset and the consideration received is recognised in profit or loss. The Company de-recognises a
financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged, cancelled, or expire.
Offsetting
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position when, and only when,
the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and they intend either to settle on a net
basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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Fair value determination
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the
asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
•
•

In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the
asset or liability, assuming market participants act in their economic best interest.
The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Annual Financial Statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:
Level 1 – Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2 – Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or
indirectly observable.
Level 3 – Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.
TIP One recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy during the reporting period during which the change has
occurred.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method. Cash and cash equivalents comprise bank balances.
Twelve month expected credit losses are calculated for cash and cash equivalents using the general approach.
Derecognition of a financial liability
The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expire. The Company
also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially
different, in which case a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. On derecognition of a
financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount of the liability and the consideration received is recognised in profit
or loss
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2.2 Share Capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.
Consideration paid or received shall be recognised directly in equity. Initial costs, directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, from the proceeds.
2.3 Operating Expenses
Expenses are recognised on the accrual basis when the goods and/or services are delivered.
2.4 Leases
Operating leases – lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. There is no difference between
the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments.
Refer to note 14 for details of the lease.
2.5 Significant estimates and judgements
In preparing these financial statements management has made judgements and estimates that affect the application of the
Company’s accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income, and expenses. Actual results may differ
from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are
recognised prospectively.
Fair value on shareholder loan- for more detail on the fair value refer to note 7.
Information about judgements made in applying the accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements is included in the following notes in the financial statements:
•
•

Going concern: refer to Note 19
Fair value: refer to Note 7

32

TIP One AFS
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.6 Standards in Issue not yet in use
Standard/Interpretation

Details of amendment

Effective Date

Amendments to Reference to the
Conceptual Framework in the IFRS
standards

Together with the revised conceptual framework
published in March 2018, the IASB also issued
Amendments to References to the Conceptual
Framework in the IFRS Standards

Effective for periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2020

Definition of material (Amendment to
IAS 1 and IAS 8)

The Amendments in Definition of Material clarify
the definition of ‘material’ and align the
definition used in the Conceptual Framework
and the standards

Effective for periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2020

Classification of liabilities as Current or
Non-Current (Amendment to IAS 1)

The amendments aim to promote consistency in
applying the requirements by helping companies
to determine whether the statement of financial
position, debt and other liabilities with an
uncertain settlement date should be classified as
current (due or potentially due to be settled
within one year) or non-current.

Effective for periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2022

Annual improvements
Standards 2018 - 2020

Makes amendments to the following standards:

Effective for periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2022

to

IFRS

IFRS 9, the amendment clarifies which fees an
entity includes when it applies the 10 percent
test in paragraph B3.3.6 of IFRS 9 in assessing
whether to de-recognise a financial liability. An
entity only includes only fees paid or received
between the entity (the borrower) and the
lender, including fees paid or received by either
the entity or the lender on the other’s behalf.
The company has assessed the amendments and it is not expected that they will have a material impact on these financial statements
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2.7 Changes in Significant Accounting Policies
IFRS 16: Leases (‘IFRS 16’)
IFRS 16: Lease was effective from 1 January 2019 and was adopted by the company on 1 April 2019. The requirement of the standard has
no impact on prior year amounts since the entity did not have any lease agreements in the prior year.
IFRS 16 supersedes the previous statement relating to the accounting treatment of leases (IAS 17: Leases, IFRIC 4: Determining whether
an arrangement contains a Lease, SIC 15: Operating Leases – Incentives and SIC 27 – Evaluating the Substance of Transactions in the Legal
Form of a Lease). Under IAS 17, lessees were required to classify a lease either as a finance or an operating lease.
As lessee, the company has entered a lease in respect of property utilised for administrative purposes. The lease is being accounted for
as a short-term lease. Please refer to Note 14 for more detail.
2.8 Income Tax
Deferred Tax
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised where the carrying amount of an asset or liability in the statement of financial
position differs to its tax base, except for differences arising on:
• the initial recognition of goodwill
• the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which is not a business combination and at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit
• investments in subsidiaries where the company can control the timing of the reversal of the difference and it is probable that
the difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Recognition of deferred tax assets is restricted to those instances where it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the difference can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised; such reductions are reversed when the
probability of future taxable profits improves. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be
used.
The amount of the asset or liability is determined using tax rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of
the reporting period and are expected to apply when the deferred tax liabilities/(assets) are settled/(recovered). Deferred tax
balances are not discounted.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain criteria are met.
The entity has not raised a deferred tax asset for the assessed loss, as at year end it was uncertain that the entity will make future
taxable income due to the impact of Covid. After year end the entity entered a strategic relationship entered with Baphalane Ba
Mantserre Investment Holdings (“BBMIH”) and TIP One. BBMIH has confirmed an initial investment of R 5 million into TIP One,
which will be followed by a road show to raise further capital into TIP One.

34

TIP One AFS
NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Figures in South African Rands

2020

2019

3. Other receivables
Other receivables comprise:
Interest accrual on bank balance
Total other receivables

4 411
4 411

-

157 981
157 981

10 000
10 000

4. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise:
Cash
Balances with banks
Total cash
5. Issued capital
Authorised and issued share capital
Authorised
10 000 000 000 Ordinary shares
Issued
2020: 2 323 714 Ordinary shares, significant change following the
listing of TIP One on ZAR X on 13 November 2019.
2019: 100 Ordinary shares

2 323 814

100

6. Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables comprise:
Trade creditors
Accrued liabilities
Non-Executive Directors Fees
Other payables
Total trade and other payables
7. Loan from shareholder
Loans from African Financial Group
TIP One received a loan from one the shareholders, African Financial Group. The
difference between the fair value on the initial recognition and the proceeds received
was recognised as a non-distributable reserve on the interest free shareholder loan. In
the calculation, the fair value of the loan on day 1, management has made the following
assumptions
Repayment period: 4 years
Management has reviewed the cashflow projections and believe that the company
would be in position to pay the loan in 2022, 4 years after issue
The prime interest rate was used. Management believes it is the appropriate rate
taking into consideration the going rate for in the market for similar entities
The finance cost relating to the loan and the amortization of the day 1 gain reserve
is based on the same pattern and amounts are amortised over the 4-year period,
consequently the effect in the profit or loss is nil.

70 028
66 000
30 000
4 440
170 468

-

8 306

7 438

8 306

7 438
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Figures in South African Rands

2020

2019

8. Administrative expenses
Administrative expenses comprise:

Accounting fees
Auditors remuneration - fees
Bank charges

6 050
148 810
1 430

Secretarial fees
Listing fees
Marketing and communication
Total administrative expenses

135 985
80 947
55 775
428 997

-

9. Other expenses
Other expenses comprise:
Consulting fees
Employee benefit expenses
Entertainment
Insurance
Lease rentals
Legal expense
License Fees – RAC Advisory
Non-Executive Directors
Printing and stationery
Website hosting
Travel - local
Total other expenses

1 917 615

-

148 810

-

4 411

-

849

-

1 081 000
187 203
9 003
25 000
140 000
118 633
230 000
30 000
90 964
2 536
3 276

10. Loss from operating activities
Loss from operating activities includes the following separately disclosable items
Auditors remuneration - fees
11. Finance income
Finance income comprises:
Interest received
12. Finance costs
Finance costs included in profit or loss:
Interest - Payroll Taxes
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13. Directors remuneration
Directors remuneration paid to Executive Directors and payable to the Non-Executive Directors is summarized below:
Directors

Non-Executive
Basic
Director Fee Remuneration

Geoffrey Blount
Lemao Ditodi

-

Kagisho Mahura

10 000

Hopolang Ntoi

10 000

Ntombomzi Ngada

10 000

Total

30 000

Total
Emoluments

125 307

125 307

61 896

61 896

-

10 000
10 000
10 000

187 203

217 203

The executive directors both have a shareholding in TIP One, with Geoffrey Blount owning 250 000 shares and Lemao Ditodi
having a beneficial holding of 1 062 000 shares in TIP One through the Ditodi Family Trust. No remuneration was payable to the
directors resulting from these beneficial holdings. Please refer to the related party note for more detail.
14. Lease short-term
IFRS 16 provides guidance on the treatment of short-term leases. African Financial Group has entered into a lease for the premises
and has subleased a portion of the rent for the premises to TIP One based on headcount, the term of the lease is contingent on
the lease period between African Financial Group and the external third party. The monthly rent charged to TIP One in terms of
this agreement is R20 000 per month, and there is no escalation at this point. Following the COVID-19 pandemic and the
subsequent lockdown, African Financial Group provided relief of 3 months, rent to TIP One, for the May, June, and July 2020.
The lease term with the external third party is up to April 2021. African Financial Group being party to the agreement with the
external third party will assess whether to renew the lease in January 2021.
15. Prior year restatement
Equity and liabilities
Restatement

2019
Restated

-

(2 462)

(2 462)

Loan from shareholder (AFG)

(9 900)

2 462

(7 438)

Total

(9 900)

Equity
Day One Gain Reserve

2019

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
-

(9 900)

The restatement relates to the calculation of the fair value of the shareholder loan on initial measurement from African
Financial Group in the prior year. The loan is non-interest bearing with no fixed repayment period, estimated at 4 years. The
restatement is the recalculation of the day one gain on the loan balance. Please refer to note 7 for more detail
16. Related parties
Related parties are entities with the ability to govern or control the other party or to exercise significant influence such party in
making financial or operating decisions, or anyone that is part of the key management personnel (including Directors) of the
Company. Management considers the key agreements, transactions and relationships between the Company and the other
entities.
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The Company discloses its relationships, along with entities or individuals who may be able exercise ability to govern or
significantly influence the operating decisions of the Company. Below is a list of identified related parties, along with the
transactions with the related parties. In addition, ZAR X defines a related party in respect of an issuer to include an appointed
advisor or any person that beneficially owns at least over 10% of the total voting rights attached to all voting securities. Related
party transactions are conducted on an arms-length basis and any outstanding balances to or from the Company are no more or
less favourable than any other supplier or customer of a similar size.
Key service providers
TIP One currently has a total management fee of 1% is payable for assets under management. The management fee is split
between African Financial Group (Promoter and shareholder) and RAC Advisory (Investment Advisory Firm). No management fee
was paid to African Financial Group, license fees were paid to RAC Advisory.
Key Management
Geoffrey Blount and Lemao Ditodi,
Non-executive directors
Hopolang Ntoi, Kagisho Mahura, Ntombomzi Ngada and Dr Vuyo Mahlati
Key Shareholders (owning at least 10% of the voting rights)
Name of Shareholder
Ditodi Trust
Geoffrey Blount
Beagle Investment (Pty) Ltd
BESTWEALTH LIMITED

Number of shares
1 062 000
250 000
240 000
290 744

Percentage shareholding
45.7%
10.8%
10.3%
12.5%

Related party balances

2020

2019

Loan account from related parties
African Financial Group
Other payables
Rent lease owing: African Financial Group
Directors fees owing
Kagisho Mahura
Hopolang Ntoi
Ntombomzi Ngada

R
8 306

R
7 438

20 000

-

10 000
10 000
10 000

-

230 000
140 000

-

Transactions with related parties
Expenses incurred
Licensing Fees - RAC Advisory
Rental lease payments - African Financial Group

Please refer to note 13 for details on directors’ emoluments for the period
17. Contingent assets and liabilities
The directors are not aware of any contingent assets or liabilities of a material nature.
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18. Financial Risk and Capital Management
Classification and fair values of financial instruments
The following summarises the valuation methods and assumptions used in estimating the fair values of financial instruments
reflected in the tables.
Financial assets at amortised cost
The carrying value of the financial assets at amortised cost with the remaining life of less than 12 months reasonably approximates
fair value due to the short-term period to maturity.
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
The carrying value of financial liabilities with a maturity of less than 12 months reasonably approximates the fair value due to the
short-term nature. For longer maturities, fair value is calculated based on the present value of future principal and interest cash
flow.
Fair value hierarchy
Level 1 – Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2 – Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e.
as the prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
Level 3 – Inputs from the assets or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). The following
table shows the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities. It does not include fair value information for financial assets
and financial liabilities are not measured at fair value if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value.
Financial Risk
The company is exposed to the following risks from its use of financial instruments
•
•
•

Liquidity risk
Credit risk
Market risk

This note presents information about the Company’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Company’s objectives, policies, and
procedures for measuring and managing risk and the company’s management of capital. Further quantitative disclosures are
included in the financial statement notes relating to the financial instrument concerned.
The Company’s objective is to effectively manage each of the above risks associated with its financial instruments, to limit the
Company’s exposure as far as possible to any financial loss associated with these risks. The board is ultimately responsible and
accountable for ensuring that adequate procedures and processes are in place to identify, assess, manage, and monitor key
business risks. The carrying amounts of the financial instruments used and applied by TIP One should approximate their fair
value, however that is not the case in the event of shareholder loan. Please refer to table below:
2020
Financial Assets
Trade and other receivables*
Cash and cash equivalents*
Financial Liabilities
Loan from shareholder**
Trade payables*

Amortised cost

Total

Fair value

4 411
157 981

4 411
157 981

4 411
157 981

8 306
170 468

8 306
170 468

8 306
170 468

*The carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value. The financial instrument represents a financial instrument
which is not measured at fair value on a recurring basis.
**The interest rate used to determine amortised cost this case the prime rate is the same rate that will be used to determine fair
value, therefore carrying amount approximates fair value. The fair value of the loan was calculated based on level 2 inputs refer
to note 7 for more details.
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2019

Amortised cost

Total

Fair value

10 000

10 000

10 000

7 438

7 438

7 438

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents*
Financial Liabilities
Loan from shareholder**

*The carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value. The financial instrument represents a financial instrument
which is not measured at fair value on a recurring basis.
**The interest rate used to determine amortised cost this case the prime rate is the same rate that will be used to determine fair
value, therefore carrying amount approximates fair value. The fair value of the loan was calculated based on level 2 inputs refer
to note 7 for more details.
18.1 Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities
that are settled by or delivered in cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to manage its liquidity is to ensure as
far as possible that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under either normal or stressed conditions,
without incurring unacceptable losses. The table below discloses the contractual maturity of financial assets and liabilities:
2020

Carrying amount

3 months or less

3 - 12 months

1 - 5 years

157 981
4 411

157 981
4 411

-

-

Contractual Cash Inflows
Cash and cash equivalents
Interest receivable
Contractual Cash Outflows
Trade payables
Accrued liabilities
Non-Executive Directors Fees
Other payables
Loan from shareholder
2019
Contractual Cash Inflows
Cash and cash equivalents

70 028
66 000
30 000
4 440
8 306
Carrying amount

70 028
66 000
3 months or less

30 000
4 440
3 - 12 months

9 900
1 - 5 years

10 000

10 000

-

-

7 438

-

-

9 900

Contractual Cash Outflows
Loan from shareholder
18.2 Credit Risk
Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”) assessment
Cash and cash equivalents

Impairment of cash and cash equivalents has been measured on a 1 day expected loss basis and reflects the short maturities of
the exposures in terms of the general approach adopted by management. The company considers all the indicators within the
ECL model when determining the credit risk associated with cash and equivalents.
The company considers that its cash and cash equivalents have low credit risk based on the external credit ratings of the
financial institution combined with the fact that the institution is reputable within the economic environment and the fact that
none of the other indicators, considered in terms of the ECL model indicated an increased credit risk. For this reason, no loss
allowance has been recognised in relation to cash and equivalents at the current or prior reporting dates.
Other receivables
Other receivables relate to interest owing on the bank balance.
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18.3 Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in the market prices will affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings in financial
instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable
parameters, while optimising returns.
Market risk is made up for three components, which are currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk. This will become
applicable when TIP One enters transactions.
Interest rate risk management
The company's exposure to interest rate risk is on a floating rate basis. At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the
company's interest-bearing financial instruments is set out in the table below.
Cash and cash equivalents
Interest receivable

2020
157 981
4 411

2019
10 000
-

Cash flow sensitivity linked to interest rate risk
A change of 25 basis points (2019: 25 points) in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased profit or loss by the
amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that the other variables remain constant and is based on closing balances
compounded annually.
2020
Impact on profit or loss for the reporting period*

406

2019
25

*Assuming 25 basis point increase on interest rates, this is the potential increase in interest income.
Going forward, the impact of COVID remains uncertain and cannot be predicted. The financial position and operating results of
the Company may, to a certain extent, depend on future developments.
18.4 Capital Risk Management
The Company manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising return to
shareholders through the optimization of debt and equity balance. To maintain or adjust the capital structure of the Company,
the board of directors may adjust the number of shares to be issued. This strategy has remained unchanged for the prior
reporting period. The Company does not have any externally imposed capital requirements.
19.Going concern
Please also refer to the COVID-19 assessment in the Director’s report. We draw attention to the fact that on 30 June, 2020 the
Company had accumulated losses of R 2 343 050 and that the Company's total liabilities exceed its assets by R 17 642.
The directors believe that the Company will continue to operate for the foreseeable future as a going concern due to the
strategic relationship entered with Baphalane Ba Mantserre Investment Holdings (“BBMIH”) and TIP One. BBMIH has confirmed
an initial investment of R 5 million into TIP One, which will be followed by a road show to raise further capital into TIP One.
Accordingly, the financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The directors are not aware of any new
material changes that may adversely impact the Company. The directors are also not aware of any material non-compliance with
statutory or regulatory requirements or of any pending changes to legislation which may affect the Company.
Going forward, the impact of COVID remains uncertain and cannot be predicted. The financial position and operating results of
the Company may, to a certain extent, depend on future developments.
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20. Earnings/Loss per share
Basic loss per share
The calculation of basic loss per ordinary share is based on a basic loss of R2 343 050, and a weighted average number of shares
of 1 339 133, resulting in a basic loss of R1.74 per share.
Headline loss per share
The calculation of headline loss per ordinary share is based on a basic loss of R2 343 050, and a weighted average number of
shares of 1 339 133, resulting in a headline loss of R1.74 per share.
Diluted loss per share
The Company has no dilutive instruments, and as such, the calculation of diluted loss per share is based on diluted loss of
R2 343 050, and a weighted average number of shares of 1 339 133, resulting in a diluted loss of R1.74 per share.
21. Events after the balance sheet date
Dr Vuyokazi Felicity Mahlati
It is with great sadness that our chairperson, Dr Vuyokazi Felicity Mahlati passed-away on the 13th of October 2020. We value and
appreciate her contribution towards TIP One and South Africa. May her soul rest in peace and rise in glory.
Assessment of events after reporting date
The board is not aware of any matter or circumstance arising since the reporting date, to the date of this report, that could have
a material effect on the financial position of the Company except the continuation of the risk-adjusted approach implemented by
the South African Government as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic and outbreak. This impacted TIP One in its ability to enter
transactions and raise capital. However, despite the challenging environment, TIP One secured a strategic relationship with
BBMIH, who have confirmed an initial investment of R5million into TIP One, thereafter followed by a road show to raise further
capital into TIP One.
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Notes

2020

2019

Auditors remuneration - fees
Bank charges

(6 050)
(148 810)
(1 430)

Secretarial fees
Listing Fees
Marketing and communication
Total administrative expenses

(135 985)
(80 947)
(55 775)
(428 997)

-

Administrative expenses
Accounting fees

Other expenses
Consulting fees

(1 917 615)

-

(1 081 000)
(187 203)
(9 003)

Employee costs - directors
Entertainment
Insurance
Lease rentals
Legal expense

(25 000)
(140 000)
(118 633)
(230 000)
(30 000)
(90 964)
(2 536)
(3 276)

License Fee – RAC Advisory
Non-executive directors
Printing and Stationery
Website hosting
Travel - local
Total other expenses
Loss from operating activities

10

(2 346 612)

-

Finance income
Interest received
Total finance income

11

4 411
4 411

-

Finance costs
Interest – Payroll Taxes
Total finance costs

12

(849)
(849)

-

(2 343 050)

-

Loss for the year
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
Transformational Investment Portfolio One Limited, Registration number 2017/458073/06, ZAR X share code: ZXTIP, ISIN: ZAE00000042
(“Tip One” or “the company”)
Notice is hereby given that the annual general meeting of shareholders of Tip One will be held entirely via a remote interactive electronic
platform, Zoom, on Tuesday the 22 December 2020, at 10:00 (the “annual general meeting”) for the purposes of transacting the following
business, with or without amendment:
a) To receive, consider and adopt the Annual Financial Statements of the company as at and for its year-ended on 30 June 2020, together with
the reports of the directors and auditors thereon contained in the Integrated Annual Report;
b) Transacting any other business as may be transacted at the annual general meeting of shareholders of a company; and
c) Considering and, if deemed fit, adopting with or without modification, the shareholder ordinary and special resolutions set out herein.

Important dates to note

2020
Record date for receipt of the notice of annual general meeting

Wednesday, 25 November

Shareholders or their duly authorised proxies who wish to participate in the
annual general meeting, must register to do so by lodging a completed Electronic
Participation Application Form by close of business (5 p.m.)

Friday, 18 December

Last day to trade in order to be eligible to vote at the annual general meeting

Friday, 18 December

Record date for voting purposes (“voting record date”)

Friday, 18 December

Last day to lodge forms of proxy for administrative purposes

Monday, 21 December

Annual general meeting held at 10:00am on

Tuesday, 22 December

Results of annual general meeting released on ZAPS on

Tuesday, 22 December

Definitions
In this notice the following words will have the meanings as stated:
“attend” will mean electronic participation as envisaged in this notice
“present in person” will mean electronic participation as envisaged in this notice
“in person” will mean electronic participation
In terms of section 62(3)(e) of the Companies Act (Act No. 71 of 2008) (the “Companies Act” or the “Act”):
• A shareholder who is entitled to participate and vote at the annual
general meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy or two or more proxies to participate in and vote at the annual general meeting in the place of the
shareholder, by completing the form of proxy in accordance with the instructions set out therein;
• A proxy need not be a shareholder of the company; and
• Tip One shareholders recorded in the register of the company on the voting record date (including proxies) are required to provide reasonably
satisfactory identification before being entitled to participate in the annual general meeting. In this regard all Tip One shareholders recorded in
the register of the company on the voting record date will be required to provide identification satisfactory to the Chairperson of the annual
general meeting.
Forms of identification include valid identity documents, driver’s licences and passports.

44

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS
Ordinary resolution 1: Adoption of Annual Financial Statements
“Resolved that the Annual Financial Statements of the company for the year-ended 30 June 2020, including the Directors’ Report and the
Report of the Auditors, be and are hereby received and adopted.”
In order for ordinary resolution 1 to be adopted, the support of more than 50% of the total number of votes exercisable by shareholders,
present in person or by proxy, is required to pass this resolution.

Ordinary resolution 2: Election of director
(Thabo Mokgatlha)
“Resolved that Thabo Mokgatlha, in terms of article 26.1.2 of the company’s memorandum of incorporation (“MOI”), be, and is hereby elected
as independent non-executive director of the company.”
In order for ordinary resolution 2 to be adopted, the support of more than 50% of the total number of votes exercisable by shareholders, present
in person or by proxy, is required to pass this resolution.
The board of directors of the company (“board”) has considered Mr Mokgatlha’s qualifications and experience (see below) and recommends his
election to the board.
Mr Mokgatlha began his career as a senior lecturer in accounting and taxation at the University of the North West. He worked as ﬁnance manager
of the North West Parks Board, centre manager in the Rustenburg office of the auditor-general and Head of Business and Treasury for Royal
Bafokeng Holdings.
Mr Mokgatlha is Chartered Accountant by profession but has served with distinction in various listed entities in both an independent nonexecutive capacity and as shareholder representation. The industry experience extends into comprehensive knowledge of mining, property,
financial services and manufacturing.
His current board positions extend to the following entities:
•
Baphalane Ba Mantserre Investment Holdings (Pty) Ltd: Chief Executive Officer
•
Hyprop Limited: Independent Non-Executive Director
•
4AX: Independent Non-Executive Director
•
Yebo Yethu Limited: Independent Non-Executive Director
•
North-West University Council
Previous board positions include the following entities:
•
Rand Merchant Insurance Limited
•
Nutritional Holdings Limited
•
Astrapak Limited
•
York Timbers Limited
•
Impala Platinum Limited
His business acumen, deal making capability and deep relationships across multiple industries make him an invaluable member of any leadership
team.

Ordinary resolution 3: Re-election of director
(Ntombomzi Ngada)
“Resolved that Ntombomzi Ngada, who retires by rotation in terms of article 26.3.2 of the company’s memorandum of incorporation (“MOI”)
and who is eligible and available for re-election, be, and is hereby re-elected as an independent non-executive director of the company.”
A brief curriculum vitae of Ntombomzi Ngada can be found on page 7 of the integrated annual report of which this notice forms part.
In order for ordinary resolution 3 to be adopted, the support of more than 50% of the total number of votes exercisable by shareholders, present
in person or by proxy, is required to pass this resolution.
The board has considered Ntombomzi’s past performance and contribution and recommends her re-election to the board.
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Ordinary resolution 4: Re-election of director
(Hopolang Leeto Ntoi)
“Resolved that Hopolang Leeto Ntoi, who retires by rotation in terms of article 26.3.2 of the company’s MOI and who is eligible and available for
re-election, be, and is hereby re-elected as an independent non-executive director of the company.”
A brief curriculum vitae of Hopolang Leeto Ntoi can be found on page 7 of the integrated annual report of which this notice forms part.
In order for ordinary resolution 4 to be adopted, the support of more than 50% of the total number of votes exercisable by shareholders,
present in person or by proxy, is required to pass this resolution.
The board has considered Hopolang’s past performance and contribution and recommends his re-election to the board.

Ordinary resolution 5: Re-election of director
(Kagisho Augustine Mahura)
“Resolved that Kagisho Augustine Mahura, who retires by rotation in terms of article 26.3.2 of the company’s MOI and who is eligible and
available for re-election, be, and is hereby re-elected as an independent non-executive director of the company.”
A brief curriculum vitae of Kagisho Augustine Mahura can be found on page 7 of the integrated annual report of which this notice forms part.
In order for ordinary resolution 5 to be adopted, the support of more than 50% of the total number of votes exercisable by shareholders,
present in person or by proxy, is required to pass this resolution.
The board has considered Kagisho’s past performance and contribution and recommends his re-election to the board.

Ordinary resolution 6: Appointment of auditors
“Resolved that SNG Grant Thornton, together with Patience Bhebhe as the designated audit partner, be and are hereby appointed as auditors
of the company for the ensuing financial year.”

The Board has assessed the suitability of SNG Grant Thornton for appointment as auditors and confirmed their independence and has accordingly
nominated SNG Grant Thornton for appointment as auditors of the company under section 90 of the Companies Act and in accordance with the
ZAR X Listings Requirements.

In order for ordinary resolution 5 to be adopted, the support of more than 50% of the total number of votes exercisable by shareholders,
present in person or by proxy, is required to pass this resolution.

Ordinary resolution 7: Appointment of Audit and Risk
Committee members
“Resolved that the members of the company’s Audit and Risk Committee set out below be and are hereby appointed with effect
from the end of this annual general meeting in terms of section 94(2) of the Companies Act and each by way of a separate resolution. The
membership as proposed by the board of directors of the company, all of whom are independent non-executive directors, is:
7.1 Hopolang Leeto Ntoi, as member of the Audit and Risk Committee, subject to ordinary resolution 4 being passed;
7.2 Ntombomzi Ngada, as member of the Audit and Risk Committee, subject to ordinary resolution 3 being passed; and
7.3 Kagisho Augustine Mahura, as member of the Audit and Risk Committee, subject to ordinary resolution 5 being passed.”
Brief curricula vitae in respect of the above Audit and Risk Committee members can be found on page 7 of the integrated annual report of
which this notice forms part.
In order for ordinary resolutions 7.1, 7.2 and 7.3 (each voted on as separate resolutions) to be adopted, the support of more than 50%
of the total number of votes exercisable by shareholders, present in person or by proxy, is required to pass this resolution.
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Ordinary resolution 8: General authority to issue ordinary shares for cash
“Resolved that, the directors of the Company be and are hereby authorised, by way of a general authority, to allot and issue ordinary shares in
the capital of the Company for cash, including within the scope of such authority the ability to issue options and securities (including any
convertible preference shares in the authorised capital of the Company) that are convertible into ordinary shares, subject to the limitations as
set out in the Memorandum of Incorporation and the provisions of the Companies Act and the ZAR X Listings Requirements from time to time
on the following basis:
• the shares which are the subject of the issue for cash must be of a class already in issue, or where this is not the case, must be limited to such
shares or rights that are convertible into a class of shares already in issue;
• there will be no restrictions in regard to the persons to whom the shares may be issued, provided that such shares are to be issued to public
shareholders (as defined by the ZAR X Listing Requirements) and not to related parties (as defined by the ZAR X Listing Requirements);
• the total aggregate number of ordinary shares which may be issued for cash in terms of this authority may not exceed 348 572, being 15%
(fifteen percent) of the aggregate number of ordinary shares in issue on 25 November 2020, excluding treasury shares;
• any issue of the shares under the authority must be deducted from the total aggregate number of ordinary shares, being 348 572 which
represents 15% of the aggregate number of ordinary shares in issue on 25 November 2020, excluding treasury shares;
• in the event of sub-division or consolidation of issued equity securities prior to this authority lapsing, the existing authority shall be adjusted
accordingly to represent the same allocation ratio;
• this authority shall be valid until the Company’s next annual general meeting or for 15 months from the date of the passing of the ordinary
resolution, whichever is the earlier, provided that it shall not extend beyond 15 (fifteen) months from the date that this authority is given; and
• the maximum discount at which the shares may be issued is 10% (ten percent) of the weighted average traded price of those shares over the
30 (thirty) business days prior to the date that the price of the issue is agreed to between the Company and the party/ies subscribing for the
shares. ZAR X should be consulted for a ruling if the Company’s shares have not traded in such 30 (thirty) business day period.”

The reason for and effect of ordinary resolution number 8 is to authorise the directors of the Company to allot and issue ordinary shares in the
capital of the Company for cash.

In order for ordinary resolution 8 to be adopted, the support of more than 75% of the total number of votes exercisable by shareholders, present
in person or by proxy, is required to pass this resolution.

Ordinary resolution 9: Waiver of requirement to review interim results
“Resolved that the requirement for the Company’s interim financial results to be reviewed by the auditors in terms of the ZARX Listings
Requirements, be and is hereby waived in favour of board approval of the interim financial statements.”

In order for ordinary resolution 9 to be adopted, the support of more than 50% of the total number of votes exercisable by shareholders, present
in person or by proxy, is required to pass this resolution.

Ordinary resolution 10: Signature of documentation
“Resolved that any director of the company or the company secretary be and is hereby authorised to sign all such documents and do all such
things as may be necessary or incidental to the implementation of ordinary resolutions 1 to 9 and special resolutions 1 and 2.”

In order for ordinary resolution 10 to be adopted, the support of more than 50% of the total number of votes exercisable by shareholders,
present in person or by proxy, is required to pass this resolution.
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SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS
Special resolution 1: Repurchase of shares
“Resolved as a special resolution that, subject to the Companies Act, the ZAR X Listings Requirements and the restrictions set out below, the
repurchase of shares of the company either by the company or by any subsidiary of the company be and is hereby authorised by way of a
general authority, on the basis that:
a) The general authority given in terms of this special resolution
shall remain in force from the date of passing of this special resolution until the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the company
or fifteen months from the date on which this resolution is passed, whichever is the earlier date.
b) The general authority shall provide authorisation to the board of
directors to repurchase on behalf of the company, shares in the issued share capital of the company as follows:
(i)

(ii)

(iii)
(iv)

(v)
(vi)
(vii)

it will be limited, in any financial year of the company, to a maximum of 10% of the issued share capital of the company (or 10%
of the issued share capital of the company where the repurchase is affected by a subsidiary) as at the date on which this special
resolution is passed;
the repurchase of shares issued by the company may not be at a price which exceeds 10% of the weighted average of the market
value at which Tip One shares are traded on the ZAR X for the five business days immediately preceding the date on which the
repurchase of shares is effected;
any such repurchase will be implemented through the order book operated by the ZAR X trading system and done without any
prior understanding or arrangement between the company and the counter party;
an announcement will be published as soon as the company or any of its subsidiaries has repurchased ordinary shares constituting,
on a cumulative basis, 3% of the number of ordinary shares in issue at the date on which the general authority to issue shares is
granted (and for each 3% in aggregate of the initial number of that class acquired thereafter). Such announcement must contain
full details of such repurchases (as required in terms of paragraph 15.1.12 of the ZARX Listings Requirements);
the company (or any subsidiary) must be authorised to do so, in terms of its memorandum of incorporation;
at any point in time, the company may only appoint one agent to effect any repurchase(s) on the company’s behalf; and
repurchases may not take place during a prohibited period as defined in the ZAR X Listings Requirements unless there is a
repurchase programme in place, the dates and quantities of shares to be repurchased during the prohibited period are fixed, and
full details thereof have been submitted to ZAR X in writing prior to commencement of the prohibited period.

c) The exercise by the directors of the authority to procure the repurchase by the company’s subsidiaries of shares in terms of (b) shall be subject,
mutatis mutandis, to the same terms and conditions as those set out above.
d) A resolution has been passed by the board of directors of the company or its subsidiaries authorising the repurchase, and the company has
passed the solvency and liquidity test as set out in section 4 of the Companies Act, and that, there have been no material changes to the financial
position of the company since the application of the solvency and liquidity test by the board.
Having considered the aggregate effect of the maximum repurchase of 10% of the company’s issued share capital in any one financial year
pursuant to the general authority to repurchase shares, the board of directors is of the opinion that, for a period of 12 months after the date of
this notice of annual general meeting:
(i) the company will be able to repay their debts, in the ordinary course of business;
(ii) the company’s assets will be in excess of the liabilities of the company. For this purpose, the assets and liabilities should be recognised and
measured in accordance with the accounting policies used in the latest audited group Annual Financial Statements; and
(iii) the company’s ordinary share capital, reserves and working capital will be adequate for ordinary business purposes.”
The board is of the opinion that this authority should be in place so as to enable the company, as and when the opportunity presents itself, to
repurchase shares.
The following additional information, some of which may appear elsewhere in the integrated annual report, is provided in terms of the
ZAR X Listings Requirements for purposes of this general authority:
• Major beneficial shareholders – see Analysis of Shareholders section in the integrated annual report, and
• Share capital of the company – see note 5 in the integrated annual report.
Directors’ responsibility statement
The directors, whose names appear in the Directorate section in the integrated annual report, collectively and individually accept full
responsibility for the accuracy of the information pertaining to this special resolution and certify that, to the best of their knowledge and belief,
there are no facts that have been omitted which would make any statement false or misleading and that all reasonable enquiries to ascertain
such facts have been made and that the special resolution contains all necessary information.
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Material changes
Other than the facts and developments reported on in the integrated annual report, there have been no material changes in the affairs or financial
position of the company and its subsidiaries since the date of signature of the audit report and up to the date of this notice.

Reason for and effect of special resolution 1
The reason for the passing of special resolution 1 is to authorise the company to repurchase shares issued by it and to enable its subsidiary companies
to acquire shares in its share capital.
The effect of the passing of special resolution 1 is that the company is authorised to repurchase shares issued by it and that the company’s subsidiary
companies will be able to repurchase shares in the share capital of the company, as set out above.

Special resolution 2: Approval of directors’ remuneration for their services as directors
To consider and if deemed fit, to pass with or without modification, the
following special resolutions by way of separate resolutions:
2.1 “Resolved, as a special resolution, that the fees payable by the company to the non-executive directors for their services as directors (in terms of
section 66 of the Companies Act) be and are hereby approved for a period of two years from the passing of this resolution or until its renewal,
whichever is the earliest, as follows:
Chairman of the board

20 000.00 per meeting

Member of the board

20 000.00 per meeting

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

5 000.00 per meeting

Member of the Remuneration Committee

5 000.00 per meeting

Chairman of the Audit and Risk Committee

5 000.00 per meeting

Member of the Audit and Risk Committee

5 000.00 per meeting

Chairman of the Transformation, Social and Ethics Committee

5 000.00 per meeting

Member of the Transformation, Social and Ethics Committee

5 000.00 per meeting

Reasons and effect
Reason for and effect of special resolution 2.1
To obtain shareholder approval by way of a special resolution in accordance with section 66(9) of the Companies Act for the payment by the company
of remuneration to each of the non-executive directors of the company for each non-executive director’s services as a non-executive director for a
period of two years from the passing of this resolution or until its renewal, whichever is the earliest in the amounts set out under special resolution
2.1.
In order for special resolution 2.1 to be adopted, the support of at least 75% of the total number of votes exercisable by shareholders, present in
person or by proxy, is required to pass those special resolutions.

QUORUM
A quorum for the purposes of considering the resolutions above shall consist of three shareholders of the company personally present or represented
by proxy (and if the shareholder is a body corporate, must be represented) and entitled to vote at the annual general meeting. In
addition, a quorum shall comprise 25% of all voting rights entitled to be exercised by shareholders in respect of the resolutions above.
The date on which shareholders must be recorded as such in the register maintained by the transfer secretaries of the company, Computershare
Investor Services (Pty) Ltd, 1st Floor, 15 Biermann Avenue, Rosebank, Johannesburg, 2196, for the purposes of being entitled to attend, participate
in and vote at the annual general meeting is Friday, 18 December 2020 (the “voting record date”).

ELECTRONIC PARTICIPATION ARRANGEMENTS
The Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation authorises the conduct of shareholders’ meetings entirely by electronic communication as does
section 63(2)(a) of the Companies Act. In light of the measures put in place by the South African Government in response to the COVID-19 pandemic,
the board has decided that the Annual General Meeting will only be accessible through a remote interactive electronic platform as detailed below.
Shareholders or their duly appointed proxies who wish to participate in the annual general meeting are required to complete the Electronic
Participation Application Form available immediately after the proxy form on page 52 and email same to BOTH the transfer secretaries of the
company, Computershare Investor Services (Pty) Ltd at proxy@Computershare.co.za and to Tip One at info@tiponesa.com as soon as possible, but
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in any event by no later than close of business on Friday 18 December 2020.

Shareholders or their duly appointed proxies are required to provide satisfactory identification before being entitled to participate in the annual
general meeting.
Upon receiving a completed Electronic Participation Application Form, the company’s transfer secretaries will follow a verification process to
verify each applicant’s entitlement to participate in and/or vote at the annual general meeting. The company’s transfer secretaries will provide
the company with the nominated email address of each verified shareholder or their duly appointed proxy to enable the company to forward
them a meeting invitation required to access the annual general meeting.
Fully verified shareholders or their duly appointed proxies who have applied to participate electronically in the annual general meeting are
requested by no later than 9:55 on Tue 22 December 2020 to join the lobby of the meeting by clicking on the “Zoom” link to be provided by Tip
One’s company secretary or by the company, whose admission to the meeting will be controlled by the company secretary/the company.
Participants will be liable for their own network charges in relation to electronic participation in and/or voting at the annual general meeting.
Any such charges will not be for the account of the company’s transfer secretaries, or company secretary or Tip One who will also not be held
accountable in the case of loss of network connectivity or other network failure due to insufficient airtime, internet connectivity, internet
bandwidth and/or power outages which prevents any such shareholder or their proxy from participating in and /or voting at the annual general
meeting.

VOTING AND PROXIES
A member who is entitled to attend and vote at the annual general meeting may appoint one or more proxies (who need not be a member
of the company) to attend, speak and vote in his stead.
On a show of hands, every shareholder of the company present in person or represented by proxy shall have one vote only. On a poll, every
shareholder of the company present in person or represented by proxy shall have one vote for every share in the company held by such
shareholder.
A form of proxy is attached for the convenience of any Tip One shareholder holding certificated shares who cannot attend the annual general
meeting but who wishes to be represented thereat. Forms of proxy may also be obtained on request from the company’s registered office. For
administrative purposes, the completed form of proxy must be deposited at the office of the transfer secretaries of the company, Computershare
Investor Services (Pty) Ltd, 1st Floor, 15 Biermann Avenue, Rosebank, Johannesburg, 2196 or e-mailed to proxy@Computershare.co.za to be
received by 10:00 on Monday, 21 December 2020.
Any shareholder who completes and lodges a form of proxy will nevertheless be entitled to attend and vote in person at the annual general
meeting should the shareholder subsequently decide to do so.
Attached to the form of proxy is an extract of section 58 of the Companies Act, to which shareholders are referred.
Shareholders who have already dematerialised their shares through a Central Securities Depository Participant (“CSDP”) or broker and who wish
to attend the annual general meeting must instruct their CSDP or broker to issue them with the necessary letter of representation to attend.
Dematerialised shareholders who have elected “own name” registration in the sub-register through a CSDP and who are unable to attend but
who wish to vote at the annual general meeting must complete and return the attached form of proxy and lodge it with the transfer secretaries
of the company, Computershare Investor Services (Pty) Ltd, 1st Floor, 15 Biermann Avenue, Rosebank, Johannesburg, 2196 or e-mail it to
proxy@Computershare.co.za, which, for administration purposes should be received by Monday, 21 December 2020.
All beneficial owners whose shares have been dematerialised through a CSDP or broker other than with “own name” registration, must provide
the CSDP or broker with their voting instructions in terms of their custody agreement should they wish to vote at the annual general meeting.
Alternatively, they may request the CSDP or broker to provide them with a letter of representation, in terms of their custody agreements, should
they wish to attend the annual general meeting.
Such shareholder must not complete the attached form of proxy.
In terms of section 63(1) of the Companies Act meeting participants will be required to provide identification to the reasonable satisfaction of
the Chairperson of the annual general meeting and the Chairperson must be reasonably satisfied that the right of any person to participate in
and vote (whether as a shareholder or as a proxy for a shareholder) has been reasonably satisfied.

By order of the board
CIS Company Secretaries (Pty) Ltd
Company Secretary
26 November 2020
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FORM OF PROXY
Transformational Investment Portfolio One Limited, Registration number 2017/458073/06, ZAR X share code: ZXTIP, ISIN:
ZAE00000042
(“Tip One” or “the company”)
For use by shareholders of Tip One holding certificated shares and/or dematerialised shareholders who have elected “own name” registration, nominee companies
of Central Securities Depository Participants (“CSDPs”) and brokers’ nominee companies, registered as such at the close of business on the voting record date, at
the annual general meeting to be held entirely via a remote interactive electronic platform, Zoom at 10:00 on Tuesday, 22 December 2020 (“annual general
meeting”) or any postponement or adjournment thereof.
If you are a dematerialised shareholder, other than with “own name” registration, do not use this form. Dematerialised shareholders, other than with “own name”
registration, should provide instructions to their appointed CSDP or broker in the form as stipulated in the agreement entered into between the shareholder and
the CSDP or broker. Dematerialised shareholders must notify their CSDP / broker of their intention to attend any meeting in order for such CSDP or broker to be
able to issue them with the necessary authorisation (Letter of Representation) to enable them to attend such meeting, or, alternatively, should they not wish to
attend the meeting, they should provide their CSDP / broker with their voting instruction.
I/We _______________________________________________________________________________________________________ (BLOCK LETTERS PLEASE)
of _______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ (ADDRESS)
being the holder/s of_ _______________________________________________________________________________________ Tip One shares, hereby appoint:
1 __________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ or failing him/her,
2 __________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ or failing him/her,
3 the Chairperson of the annual general meeting, as my/our proxy to attend and speak and to vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the annual general meeting
and at any adjournment or postponement thereof, for the purpose of considering and, if deemed fit, passing, with or without modification, the resolutions to be
proposed at the annual general meeting, and to vote on the resolutions in respect of the ordinary shares registered in my/our name/s, in the following manner
(see note 2):

Number of votes†
Shares For* Against* Abstain*

For

Against Abstain

Ordinary resolution 1 – Adoption of Annual Financial Statements
Ordinary resolution 2 – Election of Thabo Mokgatlha as director
Ordinary resolution 3 – Re-election of Ntombomzi Ngada as director
Ordinary resolution 4 – Re-election of Hopolang Leeto Ntoi as director
Ordinary resolution 5 – Re-election of Kagisho Augustine Mahura as director
Ordinary resolution 6 – Appointment of auditors
Ordinary resolution 7 – Appointment of Audit and Risk Committee members
7.1 Hopolang Leeto Ntoi (Chairman)
7.2 Ntombomzi Ngada
7.3 Kagisho Augustine Mahura
Ordinary resolution 8 – General authority to issue ordinary shares for cash
Ordinary resolution 9 – Waiver of requirement to review interim results
Ordinary resolution 10 – Signature of documentation
Special resolution 1 – Repurchase of shares
Special resolution 2 – Approval of directors’ remuneration for their services as directors
2.1 Fees
† One vote per share held by Tip One shareholders recorded in the register on the voting record date.
* Mark “For”, “Against” or “Abstain” as required. If no options are marked the proxy will be entitled to vote as he/she thinks fit.
Unless otherwise instructed, my/our proxy may vote or abstain from voting as he/she thinks fit.
Signed this_______________________________________________________ day of __________________________________________________________2020

Signature __________________________________________________________________
Assisted by me (where applicable)
__________________________________________________________________

(State capacity and full name)
A shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the annual general meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend, vote and speak in his/her stead. A proxy need not
be a shareholder of the company. Each shareholder is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend, speak and, on a poll, vote in place of that shareholder at
the annual general meeting.
For administrative purposes the forms of proxy must be deposited at Computershare Investor Services (Pty) Ltd, 1st Floor, 15 Biermann Avenue, Rosebank,
Johannesburg, 2196 or e-mailed to proxy@computershare.co.za so as to arrive by 10:00 on Monday, 21 December 2020.
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NOTES TO THE FORM OF PROXY
1 This form of proxy is only to be completed by those ordinary shareholders who are:
a) holding ordinary shares in certificated form; or
b) recorded in the sub-register in electronic form in their “own name”, on the date on which shareholders must be recorded as such in the register maintained by
the transfer secretaries, Computershare Investor Services (Pty) Ltd, being Monday, 21 December 2020 and who wish to appoint another person to represent them
at the annual general meeting.
2 Certificated shareholders wishing to attend the annual general meeting have to ensure beforehand with the transfer secretaries of the company (being
Computershare Investor Services (Pty) Ltd) that their shares are registered in their name.
3 Beneficial shareholders whose shares are not registered in their “own name”, but in the name of another, for example, a nominee, may not complete a proxy
form, unless a form of proxy is issued to them by a registered shareholder and they should contact the registered shareholder for assistance in issuing instruction
on voting their shares, or obtaining a proxy to attend, speak and, on a poll, vote at the annual general meeting.
4 A shareholder may insert the name of a proxy or the names of two alternative proxies of the shareholder’s choice in the space, with or without deleting “the
Chairperson of the annual general meeting”. The person whose name stands first on the form of proxy and who is present at the annual general meeting will be
entitled to act as proxy to the exclusion of those whose names follow.
5 A shareholder’s instructions to the proxy must be indicated by means of a tick or a cross in the appropriate box provided. However, if you wish to cast your votes
in respect of a lesser number of shares than you own in the company, insert the number of shares in respect of which you desire to vote. If: (i) a shareholder fails
to comply with the above; or (ii) gives contrary instructions in relation to any matter or any additional resolution(s) which are properly put before the annual
general meeting; or (iii) the resolution listed in the proxy form is modified or amended; the member will be deemed to authorise the Chairperson of the annual
general meeting, if the Chairperson is the authorised proxy, to vote in favour of the resolutions at the annual general meeting, or any other proxy to vote or to
abstain from voting at the annual general meeting as he/she deems fit, in respect of all the member’s votes exercisable thereat. If, however, the member has
provided further written instructions which accompany this form of proxy and which indicate how the proxy should vote or abstain from voting in any of the
circumstances referred to in (i) to (iii) above, then the proxy shall comply with those instructions.
6 The forms of proxy should be lodged at Computershare Investor Services (Pty) Ltd, 1st Floor, 15 Biermann Avenue, Rosebank, Johannesburg, 2196 or e-mailed
to proxy@computershare.co.za so as to be received by 10:00 on Monday, 21 December 2020.
7 The completio and lodgement of this form of proxy will not preclude the relevant shareholder from attending the annual general meeting and speaking and
voting in person thereat to the exclusion of any proxy appointed in terms hereof, should such shareholder wish to do so. In addition to the aforegoing, a shareholder
may revoke the proxy appointment by (i) cancelling it in writing, or making a later inconsistent appointment of a proxy; and (ii) delivering a copy of the revocation
instrument to the proxy, and to the company. The revocation of a proxy appointment constitutes a complete and final cancellation of the proxy’s authority to act
on behalf of the shareholder as at the later of the date stated in the revocation instrument, if any; or the date on which the revocation instrument was delivered
in the required manner.
8 The Chairperson of the annual general meeting may reject or accept any form of proxy which is completed and/or received, other than in compliance with these
notes provided that, in respect of acceptances, he is satisfied as to the manner in which the shareholder/s concerned wish/es to vote.
9 Any alteration to this form of proxy, other than a deletion of alternatives, must be initialled by the signatory/ies.
10 Documentary evidence establishing the authority of a person signing this form of proxy in a representative capacity must be attached to this form of proxy
unless previously recorded by the company or Computershare or waived by the Chairperson of the annual general meeting.
11 A minor must be assisted by his/her parent or guardian unless the relevant documents establishing his/her legal capacity are produced or have been registered
by Computershare.
12 Where there are joint holders of shares:
a) any one holder may sign the form of proxy; and b) the vote of the senior (for that purpose seniority will be determined by the order in which the names of
shareholders appear in the register of members) who tenders a vote (whether in person or by proxy) will be accepted to the exclusion of the vote/s of the other
joint holder/s of shares.
13 If duly authorised, companies and other corporate bodies who are shareholders of the company having shares registered in their own name may, instead of
completing this form of proxy, appoint a representative to represent them and exercise all of their rights at the annual general meeting by giving written notice of
the appointment of that representative. This notice will not be effective at the annual general meeting unless it is accompanied by a duly certified copy of the
resolution or other authority in terms of which that representative is appointed and is received at Computershare Investor Services (Pty) Ltd, 1st Floor, 15 Biermann
Avenue, Johannesburg, 2196 to reach the company by 10:00 on Monday, 21 December 2020.
14 This form of proxy may be used at any adjournment or postponement of the annual general meeting, including any postponement due to a lack of quorum,
unless withdrawn by the shareholder.
15 The aforegoing notes contain a summary of the relevant provisions of section 58 of the Companies Act, 2008 (the “Companies Act”), as required in terms of
that section. In addition, an extract from the Companies Act reflecting the provisions of section 58 of the Companies Act is attached to this form of proxy.
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EXTRACT FROM THE COMPANIES ACT
“58. Shareholder right to be represented by proxy
(1) At any time, a shareholder of a company may appoint any individual, including an individual who is not a shareholder of that company, as a proxy to:
(a) participate in, and speak and vote at, a shareholders’ meeting on behalf of the shareholder; or
(b) give or withhold written consent on behalf of the shareholder to a decision contemplated in section 60.
(2) A proxy appointment:
(a) must be in writing, dated and signed by the shareholder; and
(b) remains valid for:
(i) one year after the date on which it was signed; or
(ii) any longer or shorter period expressly set out in the appointment, unless it is revoked in a manner contemplated in subsection (4)(c), or expires earlier as
contemplated in subsection (8)(d).
(3) Except to the extent that the Memorandum of Incorporation of a company provides otherwise:
(a) a shareholder of that company may appoint two or more persons concurrently as proxies, and may appoint more than one proxy to exercise voting rights
attached to different securities held by the shareholder;
(b) a proxy may delegate the proxy’s authority to act on behalf of the shareholder to another person, subject to any restriction set out in the instrument appointing
the proxy; and
(c) a copy of the instrument appointing a proxy must be delivered to the company, or to any other person on behalf of the company, before the proxy exercises
any rights of the shareholder at a shareholders’ meeting.
(4) Irrespective of the form of instrument used to appoint a proxy:
(a) the appointment is suspended at any time and to the extent that the shareholder chooses to act directly and in person in the exercise of any rights as a
shareholder;
(b) the appointment is revocable unless the proxy appointment expressly states otherwise; and
(c) if the appointment is revocable, a shareholder may revoke the proxy appointment by –
(i) cancelling it in writing, or making a later inconsistent appointment of a proxy; and
(ii) delivering a copy of the revocation instrument to the proxy, and to the Company.
(5) The revocation of a proxy appointment constitutes a complete and final cancellation of the proxy’s authority to act on behalf of the shareholder as of the later
of:
(a) the date stated in the revocation instrument, if any; or
(b) the date on which the revocation instrument was delivered as required in
subsection (4)(c)(ii).
(6) If the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies has been delivered to a company, as long as that appointment remains in effect, any notice that is required by
this Act or the company’s Memorandum of Incorporation to be delivered by the company to the shareholder must be delivered by the company to:
(a) the shareholder; or
(b) the proxy or proxies, if the shareholder has:
(i) directed the company to do so, in writing; and
(ii) paid any reasonable fee charged by the company for doing so.
(7) A proxy is entitled to exercise, or abstain from exercising, any voting right of the shareholder without direction, except to the extent that the Memorandum of
Incorporation, or the instrument appointing the proxy, provides otherwise.
(8) If a company issues an invitation to shareholders to appoint one or more persons named by the company as a proxy, or supplies a form of instrument for
appointing a proxy:
(a) the invitation must be sent to every shareholder who is entitled to notice of the meeting at which the proxy is intended to be exercised;
(b) the invitation, or form of instrument supplied by the company for the purpose of appointing a proxy, must:
(i) bear a reasonably prominent summary of the rights established by this section;
(ii) contain adequate blank space, immediately preceding the name or names of any person or persons named in it, to enable a shareholder to write in the name
and, if so desired, an alternative name of a proxy chosen by the shareholder; and
(iii) provide adequate space for the shareholder to indicate whether the appointed proxy is to vote in favour of or against any resolution or resolutions to be put
at the meeting, or is to abstain from voting;
(c) the company must not require that the proxy appointment be made irrevocable; and
(d) the proxy appointment remains valid only until the end of the meeting at which it was intended to be used, subject to subsection (5).
(9) Subsection (8)(b) and (d) do not apply if the company merely supplies a generally available standard form of proxy appointment on request by a shareholder.”
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ELECTRONIC PARTICIPATION APPLICATION FORM
Information required for participation by electronic communication at the AGM
Full name of shareholder:

Identity or registration number of shareholder:

Full name of authorised representative (if applicable):

Identity number of authorised representative:

Email address:

*Note: this email address will be used by the Company to share the [Zoom] meeting invitation required to access the
AGM electronically

Cell phone number:
Telephone number, including dialling codes:
*Note: The electronic platform to be utilised for the AGM does not provide for electronic voting during the meeting.
Accordingly, shareholders are strongly encouraged to submit votes by proxy in advance of the AGM, by completing
the proxy form found at page 51.

Indicate (by marking with an ‘X’) whether:

□ votes will be submitted by proxy (in which case, please enclose the duly completed proxy form with this form); or
□

the Participant wishes to exercise votes during the AGM. If this option is selected, the Company’s Transfer
Secretaries will contact you to make the necessary arrangements.

By signing this application form, I consent to the processing of my personal information above for the purpose of
participating in Tip One’s AGM.

Signed at

on

2020

Signed: ________________________________________
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ELECTRONIC PARTICIPATION APPLICATION FORM (cont0
Documents required to be attached to this application form
1.

In order to exercise their voting rights at the AGM, shareholders who choose to participate electronically may appoint a proxy, which proxy
may participate in the AGM, provided that a duly completed proxy form has been submitted in accordance with the instructions on that form,
and as envisaged in the notice of the AGM.
2. Documentary evidence establishing the authority of the named person, including any person acting in a representative capacity, who is to
participate in the AGM, must be attached to this application.
3. A certified copy of the valid identity document/passport/driver’s license of the person attending the AGM by electronic participation,
including any person acting in a representative capacity, must be attached to this application.
Applications to participate by electronic communication will only be considered if this application form is completed in full, signed by the
shareholder, its proxy or representative, and delivered as detailed above. The Company may in its sole discretion accept any incomplete
application forms.
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